
 
 
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
County Hall, Mold. CH7 6NA 

Tel. 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4 
www.flintshire.gov.uk 

Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug. CH7 6NR 
Ffôn 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4 

www.siryfflint.gov.uk 
 

The Council welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English 
Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawau gohebiaeth yn y Cymraeg neu'r Saesneg 

To: Cllr Ian Roberts (Chairman) 

Councillors: Marion Bateman, Amanda Bragg, 
Adele Davies-Cooke, Ian Dunbar, Ron Hampson, 
Stella Jones, Colin Legg, Phil Lightfoot, 
Dave Mackie, Nancy Matthews, Ann Minshull, 
Paul Shotton, Nigel Steele-Mortimer and 
David Williams 
 
Carole Burgess, David Hytch, Mrs. R. Price, 
Rebecca Stark and Stephanie Williams 

 
CS/NG 

 
5 July 2013 

 
Maureen Potter 01352 702322 

maureen.potter@flintshire.gov.uk 
 

 
 
Dear Sir / Madam 
 
A meeting of the LIFELONG LEARNING OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
will be held in the DEESIDE LEISURE CENTRE, QUEENSFERRY, DEESIDE, CH5 
1SA on THURSDAY, 11TH JULY, 2013 at 2.00 PM to consider the following items. 
 
Members are requested to arrive at Deeside Leisure Centre at approximately 
1.00 p.m. in order to be given a tour of the Centre before the Committee 
meeting starts at 2.00 p.m. 
 

Yours faithfully 
 

 
 

Democracy & Governance Manager 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1 APOLOGIES  
 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING 
DECLARATIONS)  

Public Document Pack



 

 

3 MINUTES (Pages 1 - 20) 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the last meetings. 
 

4 PRESENTATION FROM ALLIANCE AND LEISURE  

 To receive a presentation from representatives of Alliance and Leisure.   
 

5 SPORT AND LEISURE BUSINESS PLAN 2013-2017 - A LOCAL 
AUTHORITY PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT WITH SPORT WALES (Pages 
21 - 36) 

 Report of Director of Lifelong Learning 
 

6 DIRECTORATE PLAN (Pages 37 - 108) 

 Report of Director of Lifelong Learning  
 

7 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 109 - 114) 

 Report of Member Engagement Manager -  

 



LIFELONG LEARNING OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
6 JUNE 2013 

 
Minutes of the meeting of the Lifelong Learning Overview & Scrutiny Committee of 
Flintshire County Council, held at County Hall, Mold on Thursday, 6 June 2013. 
 
PRESENT: Councillor I.B. Roberts (Chairman) 
Councillors: M. Bateman, A.M. Bragg, A.J. Davies-Cooke, A.I. Dunbar, R.G. 
Hampson, S. Jones, P.R. Lightfoot, D.I. Mackie, N.M. Matthews, W. P. Shotton and 
N.R. Steele-Mortimer 
 
CO-OPTED MEMBERS:  Mr D Hytch, Ms. C. Burgess, Mrs. R. Price and Mrs. S. 
Williams 
 
SUBSTITUTIONS:  Councillors P.G. Heesom for D.T.M. Williams, M.J. Peers for C. 
Legg, and M.A. Reece for A. Minshull   
 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillors J.B. Attridge, C.S. Carver, C.M. Jones, R.K. Jones, 
and A.P. Shotton   
 
APOLOGIES:  Mrs. R. Stark 
 
REPRESENTING THE DECISION MAKERS: Cabinet Member for Education,  
Director of Lifelong Learning, Head of Development and Resources, and Head of 
Culture and Leisure  
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Member Engagement Manager and Committee Officer 
 
 

1. COUNCILLOR R.P. MACFARLANE 
 

The Chairman referred to the sadness at the recent death of Councillor R.P.  
Macfarlane and asked all Members, officers and members of the press to stand in 
silent tribute to his memory.     
 

Councillor N.R. Steele-Mortimer commented that whilst he was Executive 
Member of Education, Councillor Macfarlane had been the Chairman of this 
Committee.  He expressed his sincere condolences and paid tribute to Councillor 
Macfarlane on behalf of the Committee. 
  

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (including Whipping Declarations) 
 

The Chairman advised Members of the need to declare a personal interest in 
school related items on the agenda if they were school or college governors. 

 
All Members present except  A. Bragg and P.R. Lightfoot (who were not 

school governors) declared an interest as school governors. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Councillors R.C. Bithell and N.R. Steele-Mortimer declared a personal interest 
as members of the Church in Wales and Mrs. R. Price and Ms. C. Burgess also 
declared a personal interest as diocesan representatives.    
 

3. CONSIDERATION OF A MATTER REFERRED TO THE COMMITTEE PURSUANT  
 TO THE CALL-IN ARRANGEMENTS 

 
The Member Engagement Manager explained the procedure for the Call-In of 

a Cabinet decision.   
 

4. HOME TO SCHOOL TRANSPORT POLICY CHANGES – DENOMINATIONAL 
TRANSPORT   
 

The Chairman referred to the Call-In to the decision of the Cabinet  from its 
meeting held on 21 May 2013 relating to Home to School Transport Policy Changes 
– Denominational Transport.  The Call-In notice had been signed by six Members of 
the Council.  To assist Members, the following documents had been circulated with 
the agenda: 
 
 (a) A copy of the procedure for dealing with a called in item. 
 
 (b) A copy of the report considered by Cabinet on 21 May 2013. 
 
 (c) A copy of the Cabinet Record of Decision No.2854. 
 
 (d) A copy of the Call In notice  signed by Councillors A.J. Davies-Cooke, 

H.T. Isherwood, C. Legg, D.I. Mackie, N.R. Steele-Mortimer and A. 
Woolley. 

 
 The Member Engagement Manager outlined the procedure for dealing with a 
called–in item.  
 

The Chairman invited the Call-In signatories to address the Committee.  
Councillor N.R. Steele-Mortimer, as spokesperson for the signatories, detailed the 
reasons for the Call-In.  He said that a report seeking Members’ views on the 
proposed changes to discretionary school transport policy; namely post 16 and 
transport to denominational schools, had been considered at a meeting of the 
Committee held on 14 March 2013.  The Committee resolved that the Cabinet 
Member be asked to reconsider the proposals in view of the issues and concerns 
raised during the meeting and that a further report be submitted to the Committee for  
consideration.  However, the request had not been acted on and the matter had been 
considered at the meeting of Cabinet on 21 May 2013.  He expressed concern that 
the role and responsibility of Overview and Scrutiny in such matters seemed to have 
been ignored in this specific case. 

 
Councillor Steele-Mortimer referred to the good response to the public 

consultation exercise which had been held with all stakeholders, however, there had 
been some misunderstandings during the process and he expressed the view that it 
was flawed.  He said that a majority of 85% had not agreed with the proposals put 
forward and their views should be acted on.   

Page 2



 
Councillor Steele-Mortimer commented on the similarity between 

denominational transport and Welsh Language education facilities and said there 
was little difference between them.  He emphasised that the issues raised by the 
signatories concerned the transport policy not the schools admissions policy.  In his 
summary Councillor Steele-Mortimer outlined the further concerns of the signatories 
by stating that the proposed policy was discriminatory against those parents and 
guardians who wished their children to have religious based education but did not 
have the transport or personal means to send their children to the school. 

         
The Chairman asked the signatories of the call in if they had any further 

comments or observations to make. 
 
Councillor D.I. Mackie said he had been contacted by a number of parents 

who had expressed a preference to have their children educated in a faith based 
school.  He referred to the work undertaken by a Task and Finish Group on this issue 
and said it had been determined that free transport to faith based schools must be 
non discriminatory.   

 
Councillor H.T. Isherwood referred to the proposed implementation of changes 

to denominational transport from 2014 and expressed concerns around the provision 
for sibling groups, discrimination, and future transport arrangements.  Councillor A. 
Woolley expressed further concerns around the introduction of the changes from 
September 2014 and said that there was a need for more detailed information to be 
made available to parents about what would happen.  He also stated concern that 
the decision of the Committee following consideration of this matter at the meeting 
held on 14 March 2013 had been overlooked. 

           
In response to the statements made by the initiators of the Call-In, the Cabinet 

Member for Education provided background information and emphasised that the 
policy review had been undertaken to produce a fair, equitable and sustainable 
transport policy for all.  He referred to the proposed changes, the transport policies in 
other Local Authorities and the outcome of the consultation exercise.  The Cabinet 
Member acknowledged that there had been a high proportion of responses which 
had disagreed with the proposed changes, however, the reasons for opposition had 
been divided.  He gave a synopsis of the issues raised during consultation and the 
responses which had been provided. 

 
The Director of Lifelong Learning commented on the importance of the roles of 

Scrutiny and Cabinet and the history around discussions relating to access and 
options to school transport.  He advised that since denominational schools are 
“aided” schools they had responsibility for their own admissions and suitable 
evidence of adherence to the faith of the school may be requested to support an 
application for free transport.   

 
The Director emphasised the value and role of faith based education and 

reiterated that the proposed changes were intended to produce a fair, equitable and 
sustainable transport policy.  He referred to the current provision, the need to deliver 
an efficient and effective service, statutory transport provision, additional 
discretionary assistance, and the case for change.   

Page 3



 
The Chairman invited questions from members of the Committee. 
 
Councillor A.I. Dunbar referred to the pressure on the Authority to make 

savings on its public spending and to protect essential services and commended the 
Cabinet Member and Officers for taking difficult but decisive action.  Councillors R.G. 
Hampson and S. Jones repeated these sentiments. 

 
Councillor N.M. Matthews made reference to other legislation which she felt 

contradicted the legislation cited by the Cabinet Member and also referred to the 
children of practising Anglicans in faith schools.   

 
Mrs. R. Price, representing the Roman Catholic diocese of Wrexham, 

expressed a number of concerns and referred to the misconceptions driving the 
report and the need to revisit some of the information and history that had lead to the 
current position.  She stated that the Authority had Church school, community school 
and welsh medium provision and there was a need for dual regard for that provision 
and the choices available for parents and guardians.  She continued that the 
Admissions policy to schools was not always understood and could lead to the denial 
of real choice to faith based schools which may not be the nearest school. 

 
In response to a query raised by Councillor A.M. Bragg concerning siblings the 

Cabinet Member for Education explained that the sibling rule applied to admissions 
but did not and never had applied to school transport.  Concerning the further 
question from Councillor Bragg around transport provision the Cabinet Member said 
that if there was available space on the school bus then there would be a charge for 
the child.  

 
At the end of the discussions the Chair invited the signatories to the Call-In to 

sum up their position.  Councillor N.R.  Steele-Mortimer thanked the Cabinet Member 
and Officers for their detailed and informative responses and reiterated the main 
points he had raised at the start of the meeting.           

 
The Cabinet Member for Education referred to the responses received to the 

consultation questionnaire and explained that a response had been provided to the 
legitimate issues raised.  He stressed that the provision of Welsh medium education 
was a statutory obligation 

 
The Member Engagement Manager explained the Committee’s options for 

reaching a decision.  Councillor W.P. Shotton proposed Option 1 which was 
seconded and on being put to the vote the proposal was lost. 

 
Councillor N.R. Steele-Mortimer proposed Option 4 which was seconded and 

when put to the vote the proposal was lost. 
 
Councillor P.G. Heesom proposed Option 2 which was seconded and on 

being put to the vote the proposal was lost. 
 
Councillor D.I. Mackie proposed Option 3 which was seconded and when put 

to the vote the proposal was carried. 

Page 4



 
RESOLVED: 

 
That having considered the decision, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee was still 
concerned about it and thus referred the decision back to Cabinet.    
 

5. DURATION OF MEETING 
 

The meeting began at 2.00pm and ended at 3.35pm. 
 

6. ATTENDANCE BY MEMBERS OF THE PRESS 
 
 There was one member of the press present  
 

7. ATTENDANCE BY MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

There was one member of the public present. 
 

 

 

 
 

....................................... 
Chairman 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 LIFELONG LEARNING OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
6 JUNE 2013 

 
Minutes of the meeting of the Lifelong Learning Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee of Flintshire County Council, held at County Hall, Mold on 
Thursday, 6 June 2013. 
 
PRESENT: Councillor I.B. Roberts (Chairman) 
Councillors: M. Bateman, A.M. Bragg, A.I. Dunbar, R.G. Hampson, S. Jones,  
D.I. Mackie, N.M. Matthews, W. P. Shotton and N.R. Steele-Mortimer 
 
CO-OPTED MEMBERS:  Mr D Hytch, Ms. C. Burgess, Mrs. R. Price and Mrs. 
S. Williams 
 
SUBSTITUTIONS:  Councillors P.G. Heesom for D.T.M. Williams, M.J. Peers 
for C. Legg, and M.A. Reece for A. Minshull   
 
APOLOGIES:  Councillors A.J. Davies-Cooke, P.R. Lightfoot and Mrs. R. 
Stark 
 
CONTRIBUTORS: Cabinet Member for Education, Director of Lifelong 
Learning, Head of Development and Resources, and Head of Culture and 
Leisure.  
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Member Engagement Manager and Committee Officer 
 
 
  

8. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (including Whipping Declarations) 
 

The Chairman advised Members of the need to declare a personal 
interest in school related items on the agenda if they were school or college 
governors.  All Members present except Councillors R.C. Bithell and A. Bragg 
(who were not school governors) declared an interest as school governors. 
 

9. APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR 
 

 The Chairman sought nominations for a Vice-Chairman for the 
Committee.   
 

Councillor W.P. Shotton proposed that Mr. D. Hytch be appointed Vice-
Chair of the Committee.  Councillor A.I. Dunbar  seconded the proposal and 
when put to vote Mr. D. Hytch was appointed Vice-Chair of the Committee. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That Mr. D. Hytch be appointed Vice-Chair of the Committee. 

 
 
 

Page 7



 2 

 
10. MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 25 April 2013 

were submitted. 
 

Accuracy 
 
Page 3: Councillor P.G. Heesom referred to his recorded comment on 

the School Meal Service and asked that the wider concerns to which he had 
referred be included.   

 
Page 5: the misspelling of the word deprivation to be corrected.  
 

RESOLVED: 
 
That subject to the above the minutes be received, approved and signed by 
the Chairman as a correct record. 
 

11.  QUARTER 4 AND YEAR END SERVICE PERFORMANCE REPORTS 
 

The Director introduced a report to request that the Committee 
consider the 2012/13 Quarter 4/Year end service reports for the period 
January-March 2013. 
 
Schools’ Services 
 

The Director of Lifelong Learning referred to the key considerations 
and performance across all work streams and invited Members to submit 
questions. 

 
During discussion the Director provided an update to Councillor N.M. 

Matthews on the raising of standards by transforming teaching and learning 
through effective use of technologies. 

 
Councillor D.I. Mackie sought further clarification on the information 

and data provided in the report.  The Director acknowledged the point made 
and explained that the Improvement Plan for 2013/14 should be simpler and 
the priorities more easily identifiable. 
 
 Mr. D. Hytch referred to the Regional School Improvement Service 
(GwE) and the appointment of System Leaders to replace primary phase Link 
Officers.  He asked what Officer assistance could be provided to support 
school Governing Bodies in the future.  In his response the Director advised 
that there was no shortage of professional advice to support interventions in 
individual schools that were causing concern, however, it was not the role of 
the Authority to create dependence and it was impracticable to provide Officer 
attendance at all governing body meetings.  
 

Page 8



 3 

Councillor R.C. Bithell commented on the support and guidance 
provided to school governors through the School Governors Development and 
Training Programme and suggested that it may be helpful if all Members 
attended some of the training sessions delivered. 

 
Councillor P.G. Heesom emphasised the need to broaden the training 

provided and suggested that it would be helpful if DVDs, or similar media 
could be produced so that it could be revisited and shared with those school 
governors and school staff who had been unable to participate.      
 

In response to a query from Councillor M.J. Peers regarding the recent 
Estyn inspection of six primary schools the Director advised that Inspection 
Reports had been published in respect of three schools so far and Members 
would be notified of the outstanding Reports as soon as they were published. 

 
Development and Resources 
 

Responding to a comment made by Councillor M. Bateman concerning 
the closure of an all weather pitch at a local school and the condition, 
suitability and sufficiency of education assets, the Head of Culture and 
Leisure advised that a pilot project had been set up within the Asset board to 
review the Authority’s entire Leisure property portfolio. 
 

The Chairman referred to the closure of the Nat West branch in Flint 
and the implications for school banking procedures in the area.  He 
commented on the agreement between the Authority and the Nat West Bank 
to provide banking services to schools and asked what alternative provision 
was being made to enable schools to access banking facilities within their 
local community.   The Head of Development and Resources acknowledged 
the issue raised and said he would pursue the matter with the Bank on behalf 
of the Authority.      

 
Councillor A.I. Dunbar referred to the Facilities Review and the 

proposal to develop an on-line payment system for school meals.  He 
expressed concerns on behalf of families who did not have access to a 
computer.   The Head of Development and Resources advised that there 
were a number of locations within the County where individuals could gain 
access to a computer and said that the initiative was being progressed to 
ensure access was available to all.   

 
Mr. D. Hytch made reference to the specification and design of new 

schools and asked what arrangements were in place to ensure headteachers 
and governing bodies were involved in the process.   The Head of 
Development and Resources explained that headteachers, staff, and Chairs 
of Governors were always consulted in the initial stages of the design and 
scoping of a new school.   
 
 Discussion took place on school modernisation and the areas schools 
review, development of the proposed new schools at Holywell and 
Queensferry, the post-16 ‘Hub’ at Connah’s Quay being developed in 

Page 9



 4 

partnership with Deeside College, and the implications for both Saltney and 
Flint.   The Director, Cabinet Member for Education and Head of Development 
and Resources responded to the questions and concerns raised around 
provision for faith based education, terms and conditions of service for 
teaching staff, and funding.     
 
Culture and Leisure 
 

The Head of Culture and Leisure gave an overview of the key 
messages across work streams in Culture and Leisure and highlighted 
performance in service areas. 

 
Councillor A.I. Dunbar expressed his thanks to the Head of Culture and 

Leisure for his commitment and attendance at a recent meeting of Connah’s 
Quay Town Council.    
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the reports be noted. 
 

12.         OUTCOME OF ESTYN MONITORING VISIT  
 

  The Director of Lifelong Learning introduced a report on the outcome of 
the Estyn Monitoring visit on Local Authority Education Services for Children 
and Young People.  He provided background information and outlined the key 
considerations in the report. 

 
  The Cabinet Member for Education commented that it had been 

acknowledged by Estyn that elected members and senior officers were 
committed to taking difficult decisions to improve provision and make effective 
use of resources, and understood the priorities for improvement. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted  
 

13. FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 
 

The Member Engagement Manager introduced the Forward Work 
Programme of the Committee.  He advised that the next meeting of the 
Committee would be a joint meeting of the Lifelong Learning and Social & 
Health Care Overview and Scrutiny Committees to be held on 11 June 2013.   

 
Members were advised that a workshop to enable the Committee to 

consider populating the forward work programme had been arranged for 
Tuesday, 9 July 2013.  Members were also informed that the meeting of the 
Committee scheduled for 11 July 2013 would be held at Deeside Leisure 
Centre and that a site visit would take place at 1.00pm prior to the start of the 
meeting at 2.00pm.    

 

Page 10



 5 

Members reviewed the current programme and agreed that the 
following items would be considered at the meeting of the Committee on 11 
July 2013:    

 
• Alliance Leisure  
• Annual update report on Sport and Leisure Business Plan  
. 
RESOLVED:   
 
That the Forward Work Programme be agreed. 

   
14. DURATION OF MEETING 
 

 The meeting commenced at 3.40 pm and ended at 5.00 pm.  
  

15. ATTENDANCE BY MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
   
   There was one member of the press in attendance.  
 
 
 
 

 

 Chairman  
 

  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



JOINT LIFELONG LEARNING AND SOCIAL AND HEALTH CARE 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

11 JUNE 2013 
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Joint Lifelong Learning and Social and 
Health Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on Tuesday, 11 June 
2013 at County Hall, Mold. 
 
PRESENT: Councillor C.A. Ellis (Chairman) 
Councillors M. Bateman, A. Bragg, P.J. Curtis, A.I. Dunbar, V. Gay, C. Hinds, 
P. R. Lightfoot, R.B. Lloyd, M. Lowe,  D.I. Mackie, N.M. Matthews, H.J. 
McGuill,  P. Shotton, I. Smith,  N.R. Steele-Mortimer and D.E. Wisinger 
 
CO-OPTED MEMBERS: Mr. D. Hytch and Mrs. S. Williams. 
 
SUBSTITUTIONS: Councillor R. Hughes for  D.T.M. Williams 
 
APOLOGIES:   Councillors A.J. Davies-Cooke, H.T. Isherwood, C. Legg, I.B. 
Roberts, Ms. C. Burgess and Mrs. R. Stark 
 
CONTRIBUTORS:  Cabinet Member for Education, Cabinet Member for 
Social Services, Director of Lifelong Learning, Director of Community 
Services, Head of Children’s Services, Learning Advisor for Children Looked 
After, Advisor for Social Inclusion and Well Being and Service Manager, 
Partnership, Development and Performance, 
 
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN 
 
 Nominations were sought for a Chairman for the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That Councillor C.A. Ellis be nominated as Chairman for the meeting. 
 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

The Chairman advised Members of the need to declare a personal 
interest in school related items on the agenda if they were school or college 
governors.  All Members present except Councillors R.C. Bithell, A. Bragg, R. 
B. Lloyd, and  P.R. Lightfoot (who were not school governors) declared an 
interest as school governors.   
 

3. MINUTES 
 

The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 21 March 2013 
were submitted.   
 
Accuracy 

Page 13



Councillor D.I. Mackie asked that the minutes be amended to record his 
attendance at the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That subject to the above the minutes be received and approved as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman.   
 

4. EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT OF LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN 
 

The Director of Lifelong Learning introduced the report to update 
members on the attainment of Looked After Children (LAC) in Flintshire for 
the academic year 2011-2012.  He referred to the pupil outcomes in the 
Foundation Phase, and Key Stages 2, 3 and 4/5 which were detailed in the 
report and which provided comparative data for the Authority against the 
Wales average.   
 

He introduced Mrs K. Wylde, Learning Advisor for Children Looked 
After, and Mr. D. Messum, Advisor for Social Inclusion and Well Being, to the 
meeting and invited them to give an overview of the attainment of Looked 
After Children. 
 

The Learning Advisor for Children Looked After provided background 
information and advised that there had been a notable increase in the number 
of LAC within the Primary sector (Foundation Phase and Key Stage 2) in 
2011/12.  She explained that this was due to the work of the social work team 
where intervention and action was taken at a much earlier stage.   
 

Referring to future progress the Learning Advisor for Children Looked 
After advised that joint partnership working with teachers and social workers 
was ongoing and a secondary school event which took place at the end of 
October 2012 had been well supported.  A second joint partnership day with 
Primary Schools had been held to develop plans for ‘catch up’ and basis skills 
recovery.  It was also anticipated that there would be a continuation of support 
for LAC from the School Effectiveness Grant to support basic skills. 
 

The Learning Advisor for Children Looked After referred to the Pupil 
Premium Grant which was additional funding given to schools to support 
disadvantaged pupils.  She advised that at the next Welsh Government (WG) 
All Wales Group meeting she would be requesting that the WG considered 
increasing the amount of the Pupil Premium in Wales so that it matched the 
level of funding provided to pupils in England.  Councillor H.J. McGuill spoke 
in support of lobbying the WG to increase the amount of pupil premium for 
Wales. 

 
The Head of Children’s Services advised that Children’s Services had 

published a document based on the ‘Who does What’ document that had 
been published by local authorities in England.  She suggested sending a 
copy to the Facilitator so that it could be circulated to Members of both 
Committees. 

Page 14



 
Discussion took place around LAC who wished to progress to higher 

education and the Advisor for Social Inclusion and Well Being, referred to the 
impact this had on foster care placements.  The Head of Children’s Services 
confirmed that the Authority supported students through their University 
education but emphasised that LAC were not given preferential treatment, 
that there was an expectation of reasonable parental involvement and that 
students would pursue the option to take up the student loans and 
maintenance grants available.  The Learning Advisor for Children Looked 
After cited an example of a young person who was being supported financially 
by the Authority during his university course and who had also achieved a 
work placement within the Authority.  The Chairman made reference to the 
awards given to young people who progressed to university education at the 
Annual Pride of Flintshire Awards event. 
 

The Head of Children’s Services advised that the Authority would be 
undertaking additional responsibilities in future concerning the care of young 
people on remand.  She explained that this was due to the new 
responsibilities under the LASPO Act which commenced on 1 April 2013.  
Young people in this category would be afforded LAC status and eligibility for 
leaving care services in some circumstances. 
 

Councillor H.J. McGuill asked if anger management courses were 
offered to young people.  The Advisor for Social Inclusion and Well Being  
confirmed that there was provision for young people in Primary and 
Secondary schools and referrals could be made via the schools behaviour 
support team for all school pupils.  Reference was also made to the work of 
the ‘Time for Change’ team and members were informed that youth workers 
provided anger management courses funded by Families First.  He said that a 
multi agency approach was taken to addressing the issue. The Learning 
Advisor for Children Looked After explained that as part of the Looked After 
reviews individual anger management needs would be addressed if the issue 
was raised in schools.  She also advised that there was a process specific to 
LAC to manage behaviour before it became an issue. 
 

Mr D. Hytch commented that the attainment of young people was 
highly commendable and said that officers, schools and pupils should be 
congratulated.  Councillor A.I. Dunbar reiterated these sentiments and  
referred to the work of social workers.  Mr. Hytch referred to the increase in 
the number of LAC in the Primary sector and said there could be implications 
for resources in the future.  He also expressed concern around the use of 
percentages given for cohorts so small and suggested consideration be given 
to providing data on the assessment of the individual child which might be 
more useful.  He asked the Learning Advisor for Children Looked After if, as 
part of the child’s individual assessment,  a predicted outcome was given of 
their educational attainment.  The Learning Advisor for Children Looked After 
responded that the child’s level of attainment was identified through the 
presence of Cognitive Attainment Tests (CATS), however, she highlighted 
that LAC did not regularly achieve comparable results with their peers 
because of gaps in their education due to poor school attendance.  

Page 15



 
The Cabinet Member for Education referred to the information provided 

in the report on pupil outcomes and said that it would be useful if the data on 
the educational attainment of LAC in Flintshire was compared to that provided 
by other local authorities across Wales.  The Chairman also suggested that 
comparative data on the educational attainment of children before they 
became LAC and how they had developed since in the Authority’s care would 
be useful.  In his response the Director of Lifelong Learning acknowledged the 
points made and agreed that comparative data could be produced where 
consistent information was available. 
 

Councillor N.M. Matthews referred to the additional tasks undertaken 
by teaching staff for children in the Foundation Phase and KS1 and 
commented on the need for parental education.  Officers advised that 
assistance was provided and referred to the use of social work planning and 
parental strategies.   
 

Councillor C. Hinds highlighted the work of foster carers and said that 
their role should be commended.  The Head of Children’s Services referred to 
the support given to kinship carers and stated that the Authority had achieved 
the position of runner-up in the national award for Kinship Care supporter of 
the year.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 
(a) That the educational progress of Looked After Children in Flintshire be 

noted; 
 
(b) That the Committees support the proposals to seek the Welsh 

Government to increase the Pupil Premium to £900 as had been done 
in England; and 

 
(c) That Cabinet be asked to support recommendation (b) of the 

Committees.  
 

5. YOUNG CARERS  
 

The Director of Community Services introduced a report to update 
members on the range of services available in Flintshire to support Young 
Carers.  He provided background information and explained that the services 
which were needed and were commissioned on a local level did not enable 
the Authority at present to embark on a joint commissioning arrangement with 
other North Wales Local Authorities.  However, the Authority was confident 
that its current arrangements were delivering on the outcomes young carers 
required in Flintshire.   
 

The Director of Community Services introduced Mrs. J.  Evans, Service 
Manager, Partnership, Development and Performance, and invited her to give 
an overview of the definition of and responsibilities undertaken by a Young 
Carer.  The Service Manager gave an outline of the range of tasks carried out 

Page 16



by Young Carers and the impact that providing a caring role at a young age 
may have on the person’s well-being and development in social, emotional, 
and educational terms.   She explained that for some young carers the 
experience could be positive but only if the appropriate support was in place.  
She referred to the work of the Young Carers Subgroup which had 
responsibility for producing and implementing a multi-agency Young Carers 
Action Plan and gave an outline of the actions and developments planned to 
deliver the outcomes wanted for Young Carers in Flintshire. 
 

The Chairman commented on the estimated 2500 young carers in 
Flintshire in 2001 as detailed in the report and asked if an update could be 
provided to give the current figure.  The Service Manager said she would 
provide this information to members of the Committee following the meeting.  
The Head of Children’s Services referred to the increase in the number of 5 to 
8 year olds with caring responsibilities and said there was a need to examine 
in detail what aspects of care young children were undertaking.  Members 
expressed concerns that children as young as 5 to 8 were defined as Young 
Carers and were carrying out caring duties. 
 

Councillor H.J. McGuill asked if training was provided to help Young 
Carers who were living with “chaotic” lifestyles.  She also asked if funding was 
provided for activities for Young Carers to provide respite from their caring 
role and responsibilities.  In her response to the question on training the 
Service Manager said she would pursue how this matter could be best 
addressed and provide information back to the Committee.  Concerning 
funding for activities she commented on the commissioning of services from 
Barnardo’s to provide emotional support and fun and leisure activities.  She 
emphasised the need to ensure that support was equitable and also helped 
the child to move forward.  Further information on how funding was allocated 
would be provided after the meeting. 
 

Councillor C. Hinds referred to situations where families refused to 
accept the help offered and asked if the Authority could intervene in such 
cases.  The Head of Children’s Services advised that if a refusal to engage 
placed a child at harm the matter would progress to a child protection S47 
investigation. 
 

Councillor A. Bragg asked how children of a young age were identified 
as Young Carers.  The Service Manager explained that a referral could be 
received from a number of sources and cited schools and children’s services 
as two examples.  
 

Councillor H.J. McGuill asked what links were available to facilitate 
referrals from GPs.  The Service Manager referred to NEWCIS and 
commented on the need to ensure that GPs recognised the needs of young 
carers as well as adult carers.  She said she would feed back the concerns 
raised by Councillor Mc.Guill. 
 

In response to a question from Councillor H.J. McGuill concerning 
sibling groups the Service Manager said that siblings would not be precluded 

Page 17



and the whole group would be supported.  The Service Manager advised that 
the Young Peoples Partnership were currently exploring how best to support 
Young Carers. 
 

The Cabinet Member for Social Services advised that  a Carers bill was 
currently being considered by the Welsh Government.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the approach taken to support Young Carers in Flintshire be endorsed. 
     
 

5. CORPORATE PARENTING ACTIVITY UPDATE 
 

A presentation was provided to the Committee on the Access to Action 
(A2A) card with was being rolled out to all secondary schools in Flintshire.  
The presentation was written and performed by Young Carers.  Members 
were informed that the A2A card was an ID card, produced to the specific 
needs of the young person,  which when presented in a school or social 
services setting signalled that the young person had personal circumstances 
that may require extra support or further discussion.  Schools which were 
involved in the initial pilot had endorsed its benefits and would continue to use 
it and the young people who carried the card said that it gave them 
reassurance and increased their confidence.  The card had been developed 
by Barnardos Young Carers and the Children’s Services Participation Groups.  
 

Councillor H.J. McGuill commented on the need to ensure that the A2A 
scheme was ‘rolled out’ to all relevant health professionals and suggested that 
it was placed on the agenda for discussion at practice managers forums.  The 
Head of Children’s Services advised that Phase 1 had been launched in 
secondary schools and was to be introduced in primary schools.  The item 
was also on the agenda for consideration by the Children’s Services Forum.   
She said she would ensure that parallel activity on the rollout was taking 
place.   
 

Following the presentation the Head of Children’s Services introduced 
a report to provide an update on activity surrounding the corporate parenting 
responsibilities of the County Council which were first set out in “Circles of 
Care: Corporate Parenting n Flintshire”.  She provided background 
information and referred  to the update report on corporate parenting which 
was appended to the report and invited members to put forward any 
suggestions to promote corporate parenting in the Authority 
 

The Chairman suggested that compulsory training should take place 
during a meeting of the Flintshire County Council when all Members would be 
present.   
 

The Cabinet Member for Education emphasised the need for Members 
to demonstrate their commitment to their role and responsibilities as corporate 
parents.  Councillor H.J. McGuill reiterated the sentiments.   

Page 18



 
Councillor V. Gay commented on the training provided to school 

governing bodies, which was to become compulsory in the future, and 
suggested that it may be helpful if a training module on corporate parenting 
was included in the programme  
 

The Chairman referred to the impact of the new Court Timeframes 
which aimed  to reduce delays in cases during proceedings to 26 weeks.  She 
suggested that the Children’s Services Forum be asked to write to the judicial 
officials concerning the proposed reduction in court waiting times and the 
impact this had on children’s education. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
(a)  That the current financial support offered to corporate parenting activity 

in Flintshire be endorsed;  
 
(b)  That County Council be asked to consider making Corporate Parenting 

Training for Member compulsory;  
 
(c)  That Corporate Parenting training be provided during a future County 

Council meeting; and 
 
(d)  That the Children’s Services Forum be asked to contact Judicial 

Officials regarding the need to improve future Court Timeframes. 
 

6. MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
There was one member of the press in attendance. 
 

7. DURATION OF THE MEETING 
 
The meeting commenced at 2.00pm and finished at 3.40pm 
` 
 
 
 
 

JJJJJJJJJJ.. 
Chairman 

 
 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 

REPORT TO: 
 

LIFELONG LEARNING OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 

DATE: 
 

THURSDAY, 11 JULY 2013 

REPORT BY: 
 

DIRECTOR OF LIFELONG LEARNING 
 

SUBJECT:  
 

SPORT AND LEISURE BUSINESS PLAN 2013-2017 - 
A LOCAL AUTHORITY PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT 
WITH SPORT WALES 

 

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1.01 To brief the Committee on the Sport Flintshire four year Business Plan 
along with its five high level outcomes which measure the success of the 
‘Every Child Hooked on Sport for Life’ aspiration. The plan also outlines 
priorities and programme detail on delivery, monitoring, success and 
funding. 
 

2.00 BACKGROUND 
 

2.01 
 
 
 
 
 
2.02 
 
 
 
 
 
2.03 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In 2008 Flintshire County Council and Sport Wales entered into a Local 
Authority Partnership Agreement (LAPA). The purpose of which was to 
give local authorities greater ownership of the investment they make to 
deliver programmes and projects which are bespoke to local need and 
demand. 
 
Sport Wales’ investment into Flintshire via the LAPA for 2013 totals 
£558,404. This includes funds to operate the 5x60 Secondary Schools 
Programme, Dragon Sport and Free Swimming Initiative, as well as 
additional funds to run smaller programmes in response to local needs, 
but which also deliver the service high level outcomes. 
 
Local Authorities were challenged in 2012 to produce a plan which set 
out aspirational targets to achieve the High level outcomes for the ‘Every 
Child Hooked on Sport for Life’ report card These are; 
 

1. Level 5 attainment in PE at Key Stage 3 
2. % of pupils that have attended a sports club in the last 12 months 
3. % of pupils (7-16yrs) that take part in 3 or more sessions per 

week 
4. % of 16-24 year olds that take part in 3 or more sessions per 

week 
5. % of adults that regularly volunteer in sport 

The targets set are outlined in the plan in Appendix 1. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 21



2.04 
 
 
 
 
 
2.05 

Flintshire adopted a Results Based Accountability (RBA) approach to 
the plan ensuring that every programme and officer understood the 
outcomes and focused on how they contribute to achieving these 
outcomes, giving greater ownership and understanding of the plan within 
the team.  

The success of achieving these outcomes will be measured through 
information arising from the Sport Wales national Active Adults Survey 
and the School Sport Survey, along with data collected locally. The 
Sport Flintshire team has assisted and supported schools in completing 
the survey, promoting its importance in informing future provision, 
evidencing well-being and providing pupils with a voice: all significant 
contributions in relation to Estyn inspections and future sports 
development programmes. 
 

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS 
 

3.01 
 
 
 
 
3.02 

The plan addresses the sector wide Vision for Sport in Wales and 
Community Sport Strategy for Wales. The plan also contributes to a 
number of Council Priorities and Statutory Plans within the authority, 
most notably Core Aim 4 within the Children and Young Peoples Plan. 
 
The Sport Flintshire Team has planned programmes which meet local 
need and national targets. It has, over the past 4 years, exceeded 
targets which have been set. Some key data for 2012/13 includes 72% 
of secondary pupils involved in 5x60, 24,700 dragon sport registrations, 
over £43,000 added value to programmes through utilising volunteers 
and 22 new sports clubs or sustainable sessions created due to the 
Festival of Youth Sport. The team has achieved high standards in 
relation to ‘Excellent’ Quest status (UK quality and improvement scheme 
for sport, leisure and recreation) being ranked 3rd in the UK. This reflects 
its ambition to improve and achieve more through the targets set for the 
next four years. 
 

4.00 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

4.01 The Committee endorses the plan.  
 

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

5.01 The current level of investment from Sport Wales in support of this plan 
is £558,404 per annum. 
 

6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT 
 

6.01 Many of the programmes and projects being delivered as part of the 
business plan offer local ‘doorstep’ opportunities for Flintshire residents 
to participate in predominantly no cost or low cost activities, such as free 
Dragon Sport after school sessions based at school sites. 
 

Page 22



 
 
 
   
 
 

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 

 There are no environmental implications arising from this report. 
 

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT 
 

8.01 The four year business plan seeks to meet the needs of hard to reach 
young people through the provision of bespoke and engaging 
programmes. 
 

9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 

 There are no personnel implications directly arising from the report. 
 

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED 
 

 There are no new consultation requirements from this report. 
 

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN 
 

 Not applicable. 
 

12.00 APPENDICES 
 

12.01 Summary Sport Flintshire Business Plan 2013-2017  
 

 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

 Sport Wales, A Vision for Sport in Wales [copy in Members Library] 
online at: 

 

http://www.sportwales.org.uk/media/506916/

sport_wales_english_vision_doc_reprint_all_

v3.pdf   
 Contact Officer: Lawrence Rawsthorne  

Telephone: 01352 704400   
Email: Lawrence_rawsthorne@flintshire.gov.uk 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 Sport Flintshire Development Plan 2013 – 2017 Executive Summary 

OUTCOME.   Ensure all children are hooked on sport for life and have the skills and 

environment for lifelong participation   
POPULATION: All people in Flintshire 

OUR PRIORITIES 

1. Increase opportunities and frequency of children aged 0-16 participating in sport and physical activity 

developing skills for a life in sport 

2. Provide a coordinated approach for sustaining participation 16 – 24 

3. Increase the number of sports volunteers supporting growth across the sector 

4. Provide a coach education programme for all existing and prospective coaches to ensure we develop a 

skilled workforce 

5. Increase the number of club members across the county at all ages 

6. The percentage of pupils achieving at least the expected level (5+) in Physical Education at the end of 

Key Stage 3 

 

WHAT OTHER DATA DO WE NEED(Data development agenda) 

• School sport survey Flintshire Data 

• Census Data 

• Active Adults survey data 

 

HOW WELL ARE WE DOING? STORY BEHIND THE GRAPHS – The programmes which contribute to the Outcomes and the information currently collected which supports  

 
 

1 

 

2 

 

3 

 

28% primary pupils (31% male & 25% female) and 26% secondary pupils (30% 

male & 22% female) participate on at least 3 occasions per week. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Club participation for primary school pupils is highest level 

since 2000 at 85% (84% for girls and 87% for boys).   

Levels have dropped for secondary pupils to 68% (65% for 

girls and 72% for boys). Participation levels are lower 

among older pupils – from 76% in Year 7 compared to 63% 

in Year 10. 

 

 

 

 

Fewer participate beyond the age of 15, more pronounced for girls 

Leave school without being hooked on sport 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 25



 

 

 

What We Do Now 
0 - 7 7-11 11-16 

Jimmy Bear 0- 4  Dragon Sport 5x60  

Gymini’s  Kidz Fit  

Play To Learn Schools E/C Programmes 

Dragon Multi Skills  

 Active 8-16 

Festival Of Youth Sport 

Dragon Sport Holiday Camps 

Disability Sport 

 

Key Data 

1a   Dragon Sport Festivals/sessions at school per term.   

1b   Dragon Sport Clubs/community participation 

1c    5 x 60 sessions attended 1x, 5x, 20x, 30x  

1d   holiday clubs participation (Registers/tableau) 

1e    Community Chest – measure of increase in participation 

1f     Jimmy Bear participation 

1g   Number of registered junior Netball & Basketball teams 

1h   Total participation at Festival  of Youth Sport 

1i    Number of Gold Cards issued 

1j    Number of 11-15 year old Actif Card holders 

1k   Dragon Sport holiday club attendnace 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

What We Do Now 
What We Do 

Workplace Activity 

Leisure Centre Programmes 

NGB Programmes 

Disability Sport 16+ 

Walk Programme 

FOYS 2012/13 

 

Key Data 

 
2a   5 X 60 – Overall participation, KS3 + KS4, Girls and boys 

2b   CYQ  - No people/no courses 

2c    Workplace – Number of participants and frequency 

2d    Leisure centre links – can be measured through 

database  

2e     Basketball/Netball - 18+ for Basketball and 16-24 year 

olds for Netball 

2f     Disability Sport - 16+ participation 

2g    Walk Programme – Number of participants 

2h    FOYS 2012 – New Clubs and Activities 

2i     Number of 16-24 year old Actif Card holders 

 

 

 

 

What We Do Now 

Developing New 

Clubs 

Developing Links To 

Clubs 

Supporting Existing 

Clubs 

Street Dance 

Programme 

Dragon Sport National Governing 

Bodies 

Cheerleading 5x60  

Dodgeball Holiday Clubs  

Jimmy Bear  

 Disability Sport 

 Kidz Fit 

 Workplace 

Programme 

 

 

Key Data 

 

3a   Database - Increase in volunteers and increase capacity 

3b   Workplace Programme – Links to local clubs 

3c    Club Development – no of clubs attended workshops (CPD) 

3d    ACTIV 8 -16 – new referral to clubs/new clubs 

3e     KIDZFIT – Nos attending/new clubs 

3f     Disability Sport – no clubs 0-16-16-65-65+ 

3g     Jimmy Bear – No of new clubs – no of parts 

3h    Street Dance – Measured Through FOYS 

3i      FOYS – No of new clubs  

3j      Basketball – 4 -7, 7-11, 11- 16, 16-24 and 25+ No. of clubs 

3k     Netball – 4-7, 7-11, 11-18, 19+ No of junior league teams No 

affiliated juniors/adults No junior/adult divisions. 

3l     Community Chest – Administrator – use this. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 26



 

 

4 

 

5 

 

Participation in Clubs Young People

65

70

75

80

2001 2004 2006 2009 2011

year

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

North Wales %

 

6 

 

Limited culture of volunteering – Time is barrier –process of becoming a 

coach is too long 

Strong programme of young leaders needs to be converted into active adult 

volunteers 

 

What We Do Now 

 

 

Key Data 

 

4a   Dragon Sport – teachers/AOTTS/Young people leading and assissting 

4b   5 x 60 - teachers/AOTTS/Young people 

4c   Festival Of Youth Sport – Number of Volunteers 

Coach Development Dominant Age Coaches Linked  

To A Club 

Dragon Sport  Adults Mixture 

5 x 60 Young Leaders No 

Disability Sport Adults Yes 

Active 8-16 Young Leaders Mixture 

Festival of Youth Sport Young Leaders/Adults YL NO 

Adults Yes  

National Governing Bodies Mixture Yes 

Workplace Activity Adults No 

Participation in sports clubs has remained fairly constant for 

the last ten years, however, evidence tells us that only 2 out 

of 10 children are sports clubs members 

 

What We Do Now 

Developing New 

Clubs 

Developing Links 

To Clubs 

Supporting 

Existing Clubs 

Street Dance 

Programme 

Dragon Sport National 

Governing 

Bodies 

Cheerleading 5x60  

Dodgeball Holiday Clubs  

Jimmy Bear  

 Disability Sport 

 Kidz Fit 

 Workplace 

Programme 

 

 

Key Data 

 
5a    Coach Database - Increase in volunteers and increase 

capacity 

5b    Workplace Programme – Links to local clubs 

5c     Club Development – no of clubs attended workshops 

(CPD) 

5d     ACTIV 8 -16 – new referral to clubs/new clubs 

5e     KIDZFIT – Nos attending/new clubs 

5f      Disability Sport – no clubs 0-16-16-65-65+ 

5g     Jimmy Bear – No of new clubs – no of parts 

Standards improved for last 8 yrs from 66 to 78% but variations across 

 

 

 

 

 

What We Do Now 
KS1 KS2 KS3 

Jimmy Bear Dragon Sport Clubs 5x60 Clubs 

 Holiday Clubs  

 Kidz Fit  

Swimming Programmes  

 Active 8-16 

NGB Programmes 

 

Key Data 
 

6a    Data collected through PESS and Estyn Inspections 

6b    Free Swim usage 

6c    Percentage of schools achieving ActiveMarc 

6d    GCSE average grade C and above 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 27



 

 

4d   Community Chest –  Number of projects supported 

4e   Coach Database – know how many – need to measure All ie 

MV,FE,schools, clubs, community chest applications 

4f   National Governing Bodies - no of coaches/officials  

4g   GOOGLE ANALYTICS – no of clubs viewed Newsletter 

4h  Disability Sport – Number of volunteers and coaches 

4i    Workplace – no of people trained 

4j   Number of Walk leaders 

4k  Number of candidates attending CYQ courses 

 

 

5h    Street Dance – Measured Through FOYS 

5i      FOYS – No of new clubs  

5j    Basketball – 4 -7, 7-11, 11- 16, 16-24 and 25+ No. of 

clubs 

5k    Netball – 4-7, 7-11, 11-18, 19+ No of junior league 

teams No affiliated juniors/adults No junior/adult divisions. 

5l    Number of leisure centre based clubs 

5m  Total number of community clubs across priority sports 

 

 

PARTNERS WHO CAN HELP US:      Parents and Young People, NGB’s,  Clubs, Leisure Centres, Community Organisations, Teachers, Volunteers and Coaches, Training Providers, the 

Voluntary sector/organisations, Sport Wales, Local Businesses, Neighbouring LA’s 

 

WHAT WORKS - Successful Community Sport is delivered through:- 

• Joint working across the department, other departments and the sports sector 

• Development of the 5x60 programme 

• Development of the Dragon Sport programme 

• CYQ in house delivery and Tutor and IV development 

• Coach Education courses in house  and external to develop our workforce 

• Delivery for all age ranges with the aim of ‘All Children Hooked On Sport’ 

• Innovative methods of programme delivery and partner engagement such as Basketball Development Officer 

• Development of a ‘Can Do’ culture across the workforce allowing staff to make decisions and develop programmes 

 

SUMMARY: WHAT DO WE PROPOSE TO DO?  

 

Ensure the participant is at the heart of our decisions and actions for growing sports participation. This will be done by growing the surveys carried out currently through 

5X60, Holiday Clubs, FOYS and coach education programmes and events.  We will also use School sport survey data in 2013, Active Adult Survey Data and the Census 

information to help inform our decision making. 

As a unit we will work with key partners to deliver a service which exceeds its targets year on year and delivers against the priorities, ensuring there is a shift change in the 

key headlines. 

 

Inequality of opportunity: Increase in all aspects of sport for females, people with disabilities and Ethnic Minority Communities. This will be done through a range of programmes 

and initiatives and there will be a large emphasis on working with client groups who are either at risk of non participation or who are already non participants. Programmes such 

as FOYS, Active workplace and 5x60 will particularly target these groups along with active 8-16 and disability specific sports officers. 

 

P
age 28



 

 

Strong Enterprising Clubs: We will support sports to develop a local performance structure and share learning across a range of partners; 

Invest in NGBs to create products that support and develop strong enterprising clubs i.e. adapted and shortened versions of the game; Disproportionately target resources in 

areas of inequality of provision to ensure every child has the same access to safe opportunities across Wales; Challenge partners and support those that have the ambition to 

deliver significantly more sporting opportunities to more people through strong safe enterprising clubs; create partnerships between business and sport to develop stronger, 

more enterprising club structures; share learning and support the up skilling of partners to develop a network of strong enterprising clubs in a number of sports across Wales; 

maximise the opportunity that London 2012 and Glasgow 2014 provides to capture and maintain the interest of young people through high quality sport experiences. 

 

The Education Agenda:  A collective approach will be provided to ensure that children have skills for a life in sport and are physically literate. Support for schools will be offered to 

help ensure that the percentage of children at Level 5 by the end of Key Stage 3 increases. The sports development programmes from 0-16 will enhance and support this agenda 

and projects such as learn to swim in year 7 will further support children’s ability to stay in sporting activity beyond school. 

 

Forecasting/Future Planning:  We will continue to embrace new data sources and support the School Sport Survey which we have prioritised within our plans and have created a 

county wide approach to ensuring a ‘Flintshire’ response. We also continue to advocate the sporting agenda with our partners to increase the opportunities for sporting activity 

and active recreation. Our planning demonstrates the commitment to achieving high level outcomes and we will continue to use date sources to take calculated risks which allow 

the sector to grow. 

 

Workforce:  Key to achieving our vision is growing our own workforce of professional staff, paid coaches and volunteers. Our team ethos is based around retention of all and 

support and mentoring at all levels. There is currently a strong emphasis on young leader development and we continue to embrace the young ambassador programme. There 

needs to be more planning and support for club coaches and volunteers as this will be key to ensuring that children and adults are engaged in club activity and continue to 

participate in clubs. 

 

Facilities:  We will work with our partners such as leisure centres to ensure that facilities are fit for purpose and promote sport at all levels. We have actively engaged with 

Governing bodies to create elite performance facilities and we will continue to support clubs with funding applications to develop facilities at a local level. 

 

 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 29



 

 

What We Are Doing Now And Where Do We Want To Be 

1 % of pupils achieving Level 5+ at end of KS3 12 Number of Junior/adult Netball Teams 

2 Number of schools receiving ActiveMarc Award 13 Number of junior (4-16) players Basketball 

3 % of pupils achieving Learn to Swim criteria by end of KS2 14 Number of junior league Basketball teams 

4 All swims paid and free (excludes junior swim term time) 15 Number of junior netball players 

5 Number of  registered aquatics members 16 Total number of clubs in priority sports 

6 Individual participants as % of current”5x60” schools population 17 Number of Insport accredited clubs 

7 % individual participants attending  20 times or more 18 Total number of volunteers 

8 % of females in “5x60” 19 Number of attendances at Coaching Workshops/courses 

9 Total Number of Names on a Register Dragon Sport 20 Number of candidates attending CYQ courses delivered through FCC 

10 Number of children attending 0-7 activity sessions 21 Number of Gold Cards awarded to Flintshire residents per year 

11 Number of Actif Card members  11 – 15 year old  22 Number of Holiday Club Sessions per year (3-6 & 7-13) 

 

 

 

 

1  

% Pupils achieving Level 5+ at the end of KS3

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

2
0
1
1
/ 1

2
2
0
1
2
/ 1

3
2
0
1
3
/ 1

4
2
0
1
4
/ 1

5
2
0
1
5
/ 1

6
2
0
1
6
/ 1

7

Actual

Target

    2  

Number of schools with current 

ActiveMarc status

0

5

10

15

20

25

2
0
1
1
- 1

2
2
0
1
2
- 1

3
2
0
1
3
- 1

4
2
0
1
4
- 1

5
2
0
1
5
- 1

6
2
0
1
6
- 1

7

Actual

Target

  

 

 

 

P
age 30



 

 

 

3

Every Child a Swimmer

0%
20%
40%

60%
80%

100%
2
0
0
9
/1

0

2
0
1
0
/1

1

2
0
1
1
/1

2

2
0
1
2
/1

3

2
0
1
3
/1

4

2
0
1
4
/1

5

2
0
1
5
/1

6

2
0
1
6
/1

7

Year

%

Every Child a

Swimmer

    4 

Total Swims Paid / Free

380,000
400,000
420,000
440,000
460,000
480,000
500,000
520,000

2 0
0 9

/ 1
0

2 0
1 1

/ 1
2

2 0
1 3

/ 1
4

2 0
1 5

/ 1
6

Year

U
s
a
g
e

Total Swims

Paid / Free

 

 

5

Registered Aquatics Members

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

2
0
0
9
/1
0

2
0
1
0
/1
1

2
0
1
1
/1
2

2
0
1
2
/1
3

2
0
1
3
/1
4

2
0
1
4
/1
5

2
0
1
5
/1
6

2
0
1
6
/1
7

Year

N
o

 o
f 

m
e

m
b

e
r
s

Registered

Aquatics

Members

     6

% of participants in 5x60 attending 1x or more

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%
2
0
1
0
/ 1

1

2
0
1
2
/ 1

3

2
0
1
4
/ 1

5

2
0
1
6
/ 1

7

Actual 

Target

 

   

 

P
age 31



 

 

 

 

7 

% Participants attending 20+ 5x60 sessions

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

2
0
1
0
/ 1

1
2
0
1
1
/ 1

2
2
0
1
2
/ 1

3
2
0
1
3
/ 1

4
2
0
1
4
/ 1

5
2
0
1
5
/ 1

6
2
0
1
6
/ 1

7

Actual 

Target

   8

% of females in 5x60

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

2
0
1
1
/ 1

2
2
0
1
2
/ 1

3
2
0
1
3
/ 1

4
2
0
1
4
/ 1

5
2
0
1
5
/ 1

6
2
0
1
6
/ 1

7

Actual

Target

 

 

 

 

9

Dragon Sport Total Attendances

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

2
0
0
9
/ 1

0
2
0
1
0
/ 1

1
2
0
1
1
/ 1

2
2
0
1
2
/ 1

3
2
0
1
3
/ 1

4
2
0
1
4
/ 1

5
2
0
1
5
/ 1

6
2
0
1
6
/ 1

7

Actual

Target

   10

0-7 children attending activity sessions

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

2
0
1
2

2
0
1
3

2
0
1
4

2
0
1
5

2
0
1
6

2
0
1
7

Actual

Target

 

P
age 32



 

 

 

11 

% of actif card members aged 11 - 24

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

2
0
1
2

2
0
1
3

2
0
1
4

2
0
1
5

2
0
1
6

2
0
1
7

11-15 year

olds %

16-24 year

olds %

Total %

Target %

   12 

Number of junior/adult netball teams

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

2
0
1
1
/ 1

2
2
0
1
2
/ 1

3
2
0
1
3
/ 1

4
2
0
1
4
/ 1

5
2
0
1
5
/ 1

6
2
0
1
6
/ 1

7

Actual

Junior

Target

Junior

Actual

Senior

Target

Senior

 

 

13 

No. of junior players (basketball)

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

2
0
1
2

2
0
1
3

2
0
1
4

2
0
1
5

2
0
1
6

2
0
1
7

Actual

Target

    14 

No. Of junior Basketball Teams

0

5

10

15

20

25

30
2
0
1
1

2
0
1
2

2
0
1
3

2
0
1
4

2
0
1
5

2
0
1
6

2
0
1
7

Actual

Target

 

 

 

 

P
age 33



 

 

 

15 

No. of junior netball players

0

50

100

150

200

250

2
0
1
1

2
0
1
2

2
0
1
3

2
0
1
4

2
0
1
5

2
0
1
6

2
0
1
7

Actual

Target

   16 

Total no. of clubs in priority sports

0

50

100

150

200

250

2
0
1
1
/ 1

2
2
0
1
2
/ 1

3
2
0
1
3
/ 1

4
2
0
1
4
/ 1

5
2
0
1
5
/ 1

6
2
0
1
6
/ 1

7

Actual

Target

 

 

17  

Number of Insport accredited clubs

0

10

20

30

40

50

2
0
1 0

/ 1
1

2
0
1 1

/ 1
2

2
0
1 2

/ 1
3

2
0
1 3

/ 1
4

2
0
1 4

/ 1
5

2
0
1 5

/ 1
6

2
0
1 6

/ 1
7

Actual

Target

   18 

Total number of volunteers

0

100

200

300

400

500

600
2
0
1
1
/ 1

2
2
0
1
2
/ 1

3
2
0
1
3
/ 1

4
2
0
1
4
/ 1

5
2
0
1
5
/ 1

6
2
0
1
6
/ 1

7

Actual

Active

Volunteers

Target

Active

Volunteers

Actual 16-

24

Volunteers

Target 16 -

24

Volunteers
 

 

 

 

P
age 34



 

 

 

19 

No. of attendances at coach workshops

0

100

200

300

400

500

2
0
1
1
/ 1

2
2
0
1
2
/ 1

3
2
0
1
3
/ 1

4
2
0
1
4
/ 1

5
2
0
1
5
/ 1

6
2
0
1
6
/ 1

7

Actual

Target

   20 

CYQ Course Attendance

0

10

20

30

40

50

2
0
1
1
/ 1

2
2
0
1
2
/ 1

3
2
0
1
3
/ 1

4
2
0
1
4
/ 1

5
2
0
1
5
/ 1

6
2
0
1
6
/ 1

7

Actual

Target

 

 

21 

Number of gold cards awarded to Flintshire 

residents

0

20

40

60

80

100

2
0
1
1
/ 1

2
2
0
1
2
/ 1

3
2
0
1
3
/ 1

4
2
0
1
4
/ 1

5
2
0
1
5
/ 1

6
2
0
1
6
/ 1

7

Actual

Target

   22     

Holiday Club sessions per year

0

100

200

300

400

500

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Actual

Target

 

P
age 35



P
age 36

T
his page is intentionally left blank



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 

REPORT TO: 
 

LIFELONG LEARNING OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

 
DATE: 
 

 
THURSDAY, 11 JULY 2013 

REPORT BY: 
 

DIRECTOR OF LIFELONG LEARNING 
 

SUBJECT:  DIRECTORATE PLAN 
 
 
1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
1.01 To provide Members of LLOSC with an overview of the renewed 

Directorate Plan for 2013/14 as part of the Council Governance 
Framework. 
  

2.00 BACKGROUND 
 

2.01 
 
 
 
2.02 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.03 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The County Council has adopted a new Improvement Plan.  The plan 
priorities provide tasks and targets against which the Council can be 
judged. 
  
The Directorate Plans provides the link between the Improvement 
Plan and the Medium Term Financial Strategy.  The Directorate Plan 
is structured around contributing to the following top priorities of the 
Council in 2013/14. They include: 
 
� Skills & Learning; 
� Living Well;  
� Economy & Enterprise; and 
� Being a Modern and Efficient Council 

 
The Lifelong Learning Directorate Plan contains four main sections: 
 
1. About Us 
2. Our Challenges/Opportunities 
3. Managing Performance  
4. Managing our Resources 
 

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS 
 

3.01 The plan also links to the Community Strategy and other specific 
Directorate plans such as the School Modernisation Strategy, Leisure 
and Libraries Strategy, to partnership plans such as the Children and 
Young People’s Plan and Health Social Care and Wellbeing Strategy 
and also to individual service plans.  The service plans contain more 
detail about actions in the Directorate plan. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 37



4.00 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

4.01 Members are invited to consider the Directorate Plan and identify any 
issues which ought to be included in the LLOSC forward work plan. 
 

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

5.01 There are no direct financial implications to this report; although 
financial resources will be considered as part of the specific elements 
within the Directorate Plans. 
 

6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT 
 

6.01 There are no direct anti poverty implications to this report; although 
these will be considered as part of the specific elements within the 
Directorate Plans. 
 

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 

7.01 There are no direct environmental implications to this report; although 
environmental resources will be considered as part of the specific 
elements within the Directorate Plans. 
 

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT 
 

8.01 There are no direct equalities implications to this report; although 
equalities will be considered as part of the specific elements within the 
Directorate Plans.  
 

9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 

9.01 There are no direct personnel implications to this report; although 
personnel implications will be considered as part of the specific 
elements within the Directorate Plans. 
 

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED 
 

 All Directorate Plans will be made available on the Council's infonet. 
 

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN 
 

11.01 Corporate Management Team have approved the process. 
 

12.00 APPENDICES 
 

 Appendix 1: Lifelong Learning Directorate Plan 2013/14. 
 
 
 
 

Page 38



 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

 Improvement Plan 2013-14 – County Council Report 25 June 2013. 
 

 Contact Officer: Ian Budd 
Telephone: 01352 704010 
Email: ian.budd@flintshire.gov.uk 

 
 
   
 
 

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Lifelong Learning 
Directorate Plan 

 
2013/14 

Page 41



Page 2 of 67  
 

Contents                              Page 
  
About Us 
 
1. Lifelong Learning Directorate Plan 2013-16                              3 
2. Who Leads the Directorate and What Does it Do?                             4-5 
3. Our Context          6-7 
4. Review of 2012/13                                  8-9 
 
Our Challenges/Opportunities 
 
5. Our Priorities                  10-11 
6. Forecasting Challenges                                12-17 
7. Long Term Aims         18-20 
8. Our Partnerships                 21-23 
9. Change and Improve                                 24-27 
 
Managing Performance 
 
10. Comparing our Performance with our Peers                      28-33 
11. 2013-14 Improvement Targets                                 33 
12. Risk Management                                  34 
13. Business Continuity                                 35 
14. Working with Regulators        36-38 
15. Governance & Leadership                                41-39 
 
Managing our Resources 
 
16. People Strategy                                  40-41 
17. Medium Term Financial Strategy and Plan                              42-43     
18. Asset Plan                                                                    44 
19. ICT Strategy                                   45-46 
20. Customer Access and Care                                47 
21. Equalities and Welsh Language                               48-49 
22. Energy and Resource Consumption                               50 
23. Sustainability                                   51 
24. Health and Safety                                  52-54 
 
APPENDICES 
APPENDIX A: TOP CURRENT PRIORITIES OF THE COUNCIL    
APPENDIX B: OTHER KEY PLANS AND STRATEGIES     
APPENDIX C: COUNCIL PLAN (GOVERNANCE) FRAMEWORK 
APPENDIX D: FLINTSHIRE FUTURES 
APPENDIX E: IMPROVEMENT TARGETS 
APPENDIX F:  RESOURCES 

 

Page 42



Page 3 of 67  
 

ABOUT US 
 
1. Lifelong Learning Directorate Plan 2013 - 2016 
 
Welcome to Flintshire County Council’s Lifelong Learning Directorate Plan for 2013 – 
2016, which sets out our ambitious proposals for change and improvement, within the 
context of the Council’s Priorities. Flintshire County Council’s Lifelong Learning Directorate 
promotes educational, cultural, sporting, leisure and wellbeing services to citizens of all 
ages in Flintshire both in its own right and in collaboration with partner organisations.  
 
Our plans for the future are set against a programme to renew our services as well as 
meeting the challenges of significant budget reductions in the public sector. Whilst we do 
not want to underestimate the challenges we face, we want you to know that we are 
confident of the real difference we are able to make to the lives of people across Flintshire 
through modernised public services. 
  
The Directorate Plan is structured around contributing to the following top priorities of the 
Council in 2013/14. They include: 
 

 Skills & Learning; 
 Living Well;  
 Economy & Enterprise; and 
 Being a Modern and Efficient Council (listed in full in Appendix A)* 

 
This plan links to the Community Strategy and Council Improvement Plan, to other specific 
Council plans such as the Medium Term Financial Strategy, to partnership plans such as 
the Children and Young People’s Plan and Health Social Care and Wellbeing Strategy and 
also to individual service plans.  The service plans contain more detail about actions in the 
Directorate plan. 
 
This plan will continue to be amended as we receive feedback from customers and service 
users. If you wish to contact us or have feedback on our plan please write to: 
 
Ian Budd, 
Director of Lifelong Learning 
Flintshire County Council 
County Hall 
Mold 
CH7 6ND 
 
E-mail: ian.budd@flintshire.gov.uk 
 

Page 43



Page 4 of 67  
 

2. Who Leads the Directorate and what does it do? 
 
The Lifelong Learning Directorate covers a wide variety of services based across three 
divisions: Development & Resources, Culture & Leisure and Schools Services.  

 
Director of Lifelong Learning: Ian Budd 
Key Corporate  Director with Leadership role for Education,    Culture and 
Leisure 
 
Email: ian.budd@flintshire.gov.uk 
 
 
 

  
Development and Resources - Head of Service: Tom Davies 
  
We are responsible for: 

 Youth and Community Services 
 School Modernisation 
 Admissions to schools, transport policy & support for learners 
from low income families 

 Capital Planning & projects 
 Coordination of Finance, HR and ICT support for schools 
 Governance & staffing of schools 
 Facilities Management, including cleaning and catering on behalf of the whole 
Council. 

Email: tom.davies@flintshire.gov.uk 
 

 
Culture and Leisure - Head of Service: Lawrence Rawsthorne 
 
We are responsible for: 

 Community & School Library Services 
 Arts, Culture & Events  
 Records Management, Archives and Museums 
 Leisure Centres , Sports Development & Public Open Spaces. 

Email: lawrence.rawsthorne@flintshire.gov.uk 
 
 
Schools Services – Home Team 
 
In supporting educational improvement, Flintshire County Council views the following 
objectives as key elements to working in partnership with the North Wales regional school 
effectiveness and improvement team:  

 acting as champions and advocates on behalf of local learners and learning; 

 providing leadership, sharing values and reinforcing a common approach to  school 
improvement; 

 continuing to raise standards both in schools, inclusion provision  and support 
services; 

 building partnerships, trust and capacity; 

Page 44



Page 5 of 67  
 

 generating, disseminating and using performance data; 

 enhancing schools’ capacity for self-review and self-improvement; 

 monitoring, challenging, reviewing, supporting and intervening in inverse proportion 
to success; and  

 promoting and disseminating good practice. 

 

Cabinet Members 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Other Members with lead roles which relate to the Environment Directorate are :- 

 
Cllr Ian Roberts – Chair of Lifelong Learning Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Cllr Chris Bithell – 
Cabinet Member 
for Education & 

Youth 

Cllr Kevin Jones – 
Cabinet Member 
for Public 
Protection, Waste 
& Recycling & 

Leisure 

Page 45



Page 6 of 67  
 

3. Our Context 
 
Our Vision: To secure high quality lifelong learning opportunities for all throughout life. 
 
This means that: 

• We are committed to serving the people of Flintshire by enabling lifelong learning, 
community development and wellbeing, through partnership working and delivery of 
inclusive and accessible educational, cultural and leisure services.  

• We will promote active citizenship, healthy lifestyles and the conservation of our 
heritage and environment. 

• Flintshire County Council aims to be a modern public body which has the 
philosophy of operating as a social business which: - 

o is lean, modern, efficient and effective; 
o is designed, organised and operates to meet the needs of communities and 

the customer; and 
o works with its partners to achieve the highest possible standards of public 

service for the well-being of Flintshire as a County. 
 
Within that context our Directorate will: - 

• Do the simple things better 

• Be accessible, listen and respond 

• Act openly and fairly 

• Be a learning organisation and have models of service delivery grounded in 
research 

• Develop our workforce to ensure they have the skills and knowledge to meet 
customer need 

• Challenge and be innovative in finding solutions 

• Make best use of all our resources  
 
Demographic  
Flintshire has a population of approximately 152,500 (based on 2011 census data).  This 
population is centrally concentrated between Buckley, Deeside, Flint, Holywell and Mold. 
The population is projected to be 152,120 in 2033 (using population figures from 2008 as a 
base). This is predicted to be made up as follows 25,649 (17%) 0-15 years, 83,524 (55%) 
16-64 years and 42,946 (28%) 65+ years. Currently only 18% of the population is aged 65 
and over.  
 
Birth rates are increasing which will reduce the level of surplus places over future years in 
early years and primary education provision. It will be many years before surplus capacity 
in the secondary sector will reduce. A further aspect of demographic change is the need to 
plan services and resources to support the increased survival rates for children with 
profound disabilities. Lastly, we need to plan lifelong learning, leisure and cultural services 
to secure a range of provision attractive to an aging population. 
 
Budget  
We continue to anticipate a decrease in real terms in revenue funding to the Council from 
the Welsh Government and the subsequent contribution of this Directorate to continued 
efficiency savings. Economic factors such as the increased cost of food and fuel and 
general cost of living will continue to impact on customers and service providers.    
 

Page 46



Page 7 of 67  
 
The total Lifelong Learning net revenue budget in 2013/14 is £112.5m, which represents 
around 44% of total council net revenue budget in 2013/14.  The split between the key 
services is shown in the graph below. 
 

Lifelong Learning Revenue Budget 

2013/14 (£'000)

£2,830

£3,454

£106,782

Libraries Leisure Education
 

 
 
Capital Funding 
Although Flintshire has been fortunate to secure a large first tranche of funding through the 
21st Century Schools Programme, the school, leisure and culture estate still has significant 
repairs, maintenance and capital renewal needs. The Council will need to focus on estate 
management as a priority over forthcoming years to secure appropriate service delivery 
and working environments. The full breakdown of Capital funding is at Appendix H. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 47



Page 8 of 67  
 

4. Review of 2012-13 
 
The Directorate understands that recognition and awards are motivational for both 
individual staff and teams. The following successes have been recognised, many of which 
were celebrated at recent staff conferences:  
 
Culture & Leisure 

• Leisure Services was nominated as one of nine local authorities in the category 
‘Best Public/Private Partnership Working’ at the annual Association for Public 
Service Excellence (APSE) Awards 2012 held in Glasgow on 13 September. 

• At the Flintshire Excellence Awards held on 20 April 2012, Leisure Services 
received three commendations: 

o Sport Flintshire - ‘Excellent’ status in Quest Accreditation 
o Collaborative Working - Deeside Leisure Centre 
o Partnership Working - raising standards of leisure provision 

• In December 2012, Sport Wales confirmed that for 2011/12 Flintshire was ranked 
first in Wales for Free Structured Swims per head of 0-16 years’ population. 

• The summer play scheme attendance exceeded 30,000 for the first time ever in 
2012.  32,785 visits were recorded during the 5-week summer programme.  

• The Care & Social Services Inspectorate Wales (CSSIW) published its inspection 
reports for two play settings in autumn 2012: Quayplay and Rural North Adventure 
Play in Gronant.  Both reports were hugely positive about the quality and impact of 
the two schemes. 

• In the Wales Public Library Standards, 5 were achieved and 4 partly achieved out of 
the 9 standards. 

• New e services introduced in October 2012, extending the existing digital offer, 
including downloading of ebooks, audio books and popular magazines at no 
charge. 3697 children took part in the Summer Reading Challenge, with 2109 
completing,  a 2% increase in completion rate 

• At the North East Wales Schools Book Quiz . 33% of Flintshire's Primary  schools 
took part in 2012 and the event was won by Ysgol Y Llan, Whitford Flintshire. 

• The 'Kids take over the library' event held at Flint Library was attended by 887 
people, mostly children 

• We have promoted the development of new projects for young people including 
Criw Celf regional visual arts project for year 5 and 6 pupils open to all primary 
schools across Flintshire 

• A Flintshire Excellence Award was given to the Arts, Culture and Events team's 
Schools Artist Residency Programme 

• Three year's funding has been secured from the Rural Development Fund for the 
regional Helfa Gelf Open Artist Studios project held each September. 

 
Schools Services  

• Flintshire is one of the highest performing local authorities in Wales on indicators at 
Key Stages 3 and 4.  

• No secondary schools are assessed by the Welsh Government as being in Band 5. 

• Although improving outcomes at all Key Stages, Flintshire still has too few primary 
schools that are in the top 25% and too many in the bottom 25% based on the 
2011/12 data in the Foundation Phase (FP) and in Key Stage 2.  

• Attendance is high and improving. 

• Permanent exclusions are low and reducing. 

Page 48



Page 9 of 67  
 

• The School Improvement Team continues to offer high levels of professional 
development and support in schools, challenging staff and governors to set the 
highest achievable targets for the learners in order to continuously raise standards 
of achievement for all. 

• Specific intervention strategies for Literacy and Numeracy e.g. Read Write Inc and 
Numicon are well embedded.  

• The range of  Professional Learning Communities and other forms of partnership 
working across all areas of the education sector in the authority is a strength. 

• 100% of Flintshire schools have achieved at least Phase 1 of the Healthy Schools 
Award. 

• Ysgol Bryn Coch has achieved the National Association for Able Children in 
Education (NACE) Challenge Award - the first school in Flintshire and one of only a 
handful of schools in Wales. 

• The Regional School Effectiveness and Improvement Service to be known as GwE,  
is scheduled to begin on April 1st. School improvement visits during the Autumn 
have been successfully conducted on a single model agreed with all six North 
Wales authorities for the very first time. 

 
Development & Resources  

• Teaching and learning in Welsh schools will be transformed by the Hwb virtual 
learning environment and nearly £40m worth of investment in faster broadband 
services. 

• The Catering Service has received the prestigious Bronze Award from Soil 
Association for 73 Primary schools – 1st Welsh LA to gain this. 

• Consultations on school modernisation area schools reviews now completed, with 
further consultations in Flint and Saltney to take place before Easter. 

• Successful amalgamations of three sets of Infant & Junior Schools (Mynydd Isa & 
Wats Dyke /Broughton Infants & Juniors/Custom House & Dee Road) have been 
completed. 

• The amalgamation of Shotton Infants & Taliesin Juniors, Hawarden Infants & Rector 
Drew VA and Penyffordd Juniors & Abbot's Lane Infants) are all progressing. 

• Ysgol Cae'r Nant, Connah’s Quay, opened in September on time and on budget. It 
is a state of the art building with the latest technological and environment features.  

• Project groups are now regularly meeting regarding implementation of: 
o the new primary and secondary schools for Holywell; 
o Post 16 Hub @ Connahs Quay; and the 
o 3-16 School in Queensferry.  

• Design is now finalised and work is due to start on 28 January 2013 on the new 
primary school in Shotton (on the Taliesin site) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 49



Page 10 of 67  
 

OUR CHALLENGES/OPPORTUNTIES 
 
5. Our Priorities 
 
As you will see our Directorate Plan is structured around contributing to the top 
Improvement priorities of the Council for 2013-14 (listed in full Appendix A). 
 
The table on the following page shows that whilst Skills and Learning is the main priority 
for the Directorate (blue boxes), out of the eight top priorities for the Council, the 
Directorate’s services also offer much across some of the other priorities, Living Well and 
Economy & Enterprise (yellow boxes). 
 
Each of the sub priorities are listed below under the Council Priority column. The blue  
coloured ones are where we will make abigger impact this year.  
 
Each of these sub priorities under Skills and Learning are described individually in the 
Improvement Plan for 2013-14, which should be read in conjunction with this plan. They 
provide more detailed information about: 
 
� The impact – what difference will be made 
� Why the priority is improtant 2013-14 
� What we will do 
� How we will measure achievement 
� What risks we need to manage 
� What some of our language means 

 
Main In Year  Priorities for Lifelong Learning and their associated plans: 
 

Priority Sub Priority (in –Year) Associated Plan/Strategies 
 

Skills & Learning 
 

Modernised and High 
Performing Education 
 

� School Improvement 
Strategy 

� Flintshire Aspirations for 
Learners 

 

Skills & Learning Modernised Places of Leanring � School Improvement 
Strategy 

� School Modernisation 
Strategy 

� 14-19 SOC 
� Development & Resources 

Service Plan 
 

Skills & Learning Apprenticeships & Training � School Improvement 
Strategy 

� AEWE Project Plan 
 

Page 50



Page 11 of 67  
 

P
age 51



Page 12 of 67  
 

6. Forecasting Challenges 
 
In order to deliver our priorities we must recognise the external influences that will impact 
upon our services over the next few years. These issues will shape our services and their 
future development. Many of the issues relate to the national and regional developments in 
school improvement and a movement to focus more resources on front-line service 
delivery.  
 
National Implementation Plan & School Effectiveness Framework 
The Welsh Government has set out its vision for education in its National Implementation 
Plan and School Effectiveness Framework. This is an over-arching policy framework and 
delivery plan for transforming educational standards and provision in Wales.  The Welsh 
Government has identified three inter-related national priorities that are to be the focus of 
all school effectiveness work.  These are: 

• improving literacy levels 

• improving numeracy levels 

• reducing the impact of poverty on educational attainment 
 
The main challenges facing the authority and its schools are to work as an individual 
authority and on a regional basis on six key areas of activity: 

• leadership (system leadership) 

• working with others 

• networks of professional practice (PLCs) 

• intervention and support 

• improvement and accountability 

• curriculum and teaching 
 
The School Effectiveness Grant replaces and consolidates funding previously provided 
through a number of other grant schemes. To achieve the overall aims of the grant, which 
must be administered on a consortia-based approach, schools and local authorities 
should use funding to improve outcomes for learners in respect of all three of the Welsh 
Government’s priorities referred to above. The challenge is to ensure that schools are 
effectively carrying out the responsibility given to them under the programme and the local 
authority, with schools, must establish appropriate cost-effective arrangements for doing 
this. This includes establishing specific qualitative or quantitative indicators which will be 
used to evaluate the extent to which objectives have been achieved both in terms of 
improved outcomes for learners and more effective provision to support their learning and 
well-being. 
 
School Improvement – GwE  
The Regional School Effectiveness and Improvement Service (GwE) is a new joint 
regional service serving the six local authorities in the region. It will cover the school 
improvement duties and services to monitor and challenge, and provide curriculum support 
and continued professional development for schools. It will also provide additional services 
commissioned by schools and local authorities in time. GwE will be central to school 
improvement, driving good practice and standards across the region. It aims for a 
consistency of challenge and support for schools for children and young people to fulfil 
their potential. Flintshire will have a small ‘home team’ to ensure that the Council and 
Schools receive the service both needed and expected as the ‘clients’ to ensure continuity 
of personal and trusted relationships. The model has been implemented from  April 2013 
and the North East Wales branch of the service is located at County Hall. 

Page 52



Page 13 of 67  
 
Transformation & the Learning & Skills Measure 
Schools and other partners have concluded that whilst compliant with the Learning & Skills 
Measure, the current pattern of provision at post-16 is not sustainable due to demographic 
and funding changes. The case for change is set out in the 2010 Strategic Outline Case 
(see also School Modernisation below).  
 
At pre-16 all schools are meeting the requirements of the Measure, but in some cases are 
reliant on collaborative provision to do so. The major challenge facing the continued 
meeting of the Measure is the potential cessation of the ANDP grant. Possible issues 
arising from reduction or cessation include: 

• Funding for the support of collaborative provision disappears 

• The grant is distributed differently against a background of general cuts 

• Funding is distributed through formulae which may disadvantage some 
providers e.g. Welsh medium. 

 
School Modernisation and 21st Century Schools 
Flintshire is committed to securing high quality learning opportunities for all. We must 
deploy our resources to ensure access to a wide range of educational experiences to 
prepare every child and young person with the skills and knowledge for today’s world. 

 
We face a challenge.  The challenge is to ensure that our schools continue to provide an 
appropriate “fit for purpose” environment at a time when there is limited money to deliver 
increasing expectations.  Too many of our schools are also in inappropriate buildings that 
cannot meet the needs of the current or future pupils and staff.  Key issues that inform the 
debate are: 
 

• The duty to provide sufficient school places in the right places; 

• Demographic changes affecting both urban and rural communities, and to 
ensure that learning opportunities are available in the right location to reflect 
local need; 

• The need to raise standards through high quality teaching and improved 
learning environments; 

• Minimise the impact of transitions between different stages of education; 

• Efficient management of the school estate to ensure the maximising of capital 
receipts, and to reduce costs associated with repairs and maintenance and 
running costs, in buildings that are “fit for purpose” sustainable and removing 
excessive surplus places; 

• Efficient management of future financial settlements leaving decreasing financial 
room for manoeuvre; 

• Differences in schools funding, with small provision being disproportionately 
expensive; 

• The breadth of educational and extra-curricular provision very small schools can 
provide; 

• Schools and their buildings being important to their communities, and being able 
to do more than provide education for children; and 

• The challenge of refurbishment and renewal without sufficient money to replace, 
remodel or improve all inadequate school buildings; 

• The challenge to refurbish and renew Youth and Community facilities. 
In its recent inspections, Estyn has continued to identify tackling school modernisation as a 
key recommendation to secure improved educational opportunities and outcome in 
Flintshire.  Estyn recognises that whilst considerable preparatory work had been 

Page 53



Page 14 of 67  
 
undertaken, this needed to be followed through with more key decisions in relation to 
some school communities. 
 
We do not have the resources to tackle all areas at once.  We therefore need to prioritise 
our efforts and our investment.  
 
21st. Century Schools Programme 
The Authority has produced and submitted the Strategic Outline Case in relation to the 
grant funding from the Welsh Government. The commitment to the £64.2million 
programme includes elements of improvement to the learning environments, replacement 
of old schools with new buildings, addressing the transformational change required to 
rationalise small and unviable post – 16 centres and to renew 11 to 16 provision.  
 
Members of the Council have been involved in the formulation of the options that were put 
forward for a series of consultations, concluding with preferred option decisions in March 
2013.  The preferred options are:  
 
Holywell Area 
Build a new high school for pupils aged 11-16, together with a new primary school to 
replace Ysgol Perth Y Terfyn and Ysgol y Fron 
 
Queensferry, Shotton and  Connah’s Quay Area  
Develop a 3-16 facility at John Summers High School with a Post-16 Centre at Connah’s 
Quay High School 
 
(This means remodelling of John Summers Campus to provide 600 Secondary Pupil 
Places and provide a 210 + 30 (Nursery) Primary School.  Minor works to St Ethelwolds 
VA Primary School to provide Nursery provision.  Closure of Croft Nursery School)  
 
This project will be funded by other means either by a future Tranche of 21st Century 
Schools funding or via Flintshire Capital Programme. 
  
Buckley Area 
Retain 11-16 provision at Elfed High School.  Rationalise to 600 places.  Use surplus 
accommodation to accommodate Additional Learning Needs provision and other 
education, leisure and cultural uses. 
 
There remains a major work programme to deliver the large scale investment and change 
programme in communities. 
In addition to the 21st. Century Programme, the Council has progressed a number of 
capital schemes as part of the policy to amalgamate infant and junior schools to form 
through primary schools. 
 
The programme of preparatory work is now complete, and the final amalgamations will 
take place in 2016.  The programme has involved the building of entirely new schools at 
Connah’s Quay and Shotton, and significant investment in Broughton and Hawarden.  The 
programme will be completed with the delivery of a new primary school in Holywell.  
 
Significant improvement to the learning environments have been made by judicious use of 
the Flintshire Capital programme. 
 
Hill Review on the Future Delivery of Education Services in Wales 

Page 54



Page 15 of 67  
 
The Minister for Education outlined twenty action points for improvement at school, Local 
Authority, consortium and national levels.  The Minister has also commissioned a report on 
future education structures. The main challenges for the Authority are: 

• to ensure that service plans encompass actions in support of the priorities; 

• to engage with schools in delivering national/regional guidance, initiatives and possible 
statutory requirements that emanate from the identified priorities; and 

• to continue to influence the development of new approaches to delivery, recognising 
the community ethos and context to education delivery. 

 
Welsh in Education Strategic Plan  
The Welsh Government (WG) published its Welsh-medium Education Strategy in April 
2010.  One of the strategy’s main objectives is to introduce a new planning framework for 
Welsh-medium and Welsh-language education which will be led by WG but delivered by 
local authorities. The new Framework replaces the current Welsh Education Scheme 
which is submitted to Welsh Language Board. Under the new system, local authorities 
submit ‘Welsh in Education Strategic Plans’ to WG and agree on annual targets.   
 
In meeting the challenges associated with the establishment of a Welsh in Education 
Strategic Plan for Flintshire the Directorate has: 

• established a Welsh in Education Forum; 

• considered and applied the final guidance for creating Welsh in Education Strategic 
Plan 

• submitted the Plan and received WG approval. 
 
The main challenges now are to: 

• enact the plan and monitor and revise on an annual basis; and 

• link the Welsh in Education Grant (WEG) to the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan. 
 
Foundation Phase 
The Foundation Phase grant is currently funded directly by Welsh Government and the 
budget beyond 2013/14 is uncertain. In 2012/13 the Foundation Phase grant provided for 
345 full time equivalent classroom assistants in Flintshire schools enabling all schools to 
meet the expected ratios. The grant also provided support for a comprehensive package of 
professional development opportunities for practitioners in schools and non maintained 
settings in accordance with the grant conditions. The grant for 2012/13 was £5,019,976 
which will enable schools to continue to meet the ratios. The risk for future years if the 
grant is rolled into the RSG (Revenue Support Grants) is that this full provision may not be 
able to be maintained. The challenge for the authority is to consistently embed high quality 
practice across schools at a time when there may be challenges to retain existing skilled 
staff during the last year of guaranteed funding.  
 
Physical Education and School Sport (PESS) 
The revised PESS programme has identified three outcome measures: 

• improvement trend in the achievements of young people in PE assessments at the end 
of Year 9; 

• increase in young people’s regular participation in extracurricular and club activity as 
measured by Sport Wales survey data;  and 

• number of schools achieving the Active Marc Award. 
 
The agreement to appoint three PESS co-ordinators across North Wales to work on a sub-
regional basis has been achieved.  A PESS officer has been appointed to support 

Page 55



Page 16 of 67  
 
Flintshire and Wrexham and is delivering the programme in accordance with the grant 
conditions. 
 
The challenges associated with this development are: 

• To work with Sports Wales to strategically plan and secure improvements across the 
region over the next eighteen months;  and 

• To consider how PESS may be incorporated into the regionalisation project. 
 
Libraries, Culture and Heritage 
The North East Wales Schools Library Service is a joint Service to schools on behalf of 
Flintshire, Conwy, Denbighshire and Wrexham. Flintshire has been the Lead Authority  
since July 2011. 
 
The fourth framework of Welsh Public Library Standards 'Maintaining A Valued Service', is 
in place from 2011 to 2014. The service has made significant progress during the period of 
the first three frameworks to achieve improvements in the supply of library materials, 
refurbishment of library buildings and wider access to online materials. The Welsh 
Government states that the fourth framework of the Welsh Public Library Standards 
represents a commitment to ensure that continued access to library services is maintained 
for local people during a challenging period for the public sector in Wales. 
 
The County Record Office faces the serious challenge of a shortage in strong room 
capacity. If not resolved this could result in the service being forced to decline offers of 
important archives and the loss of the County's heritage. Options to adapt the present 
premises will be investigated and models for alternative delivery based on collaboration 
with neighbouring authorities will be explored. 
 
Leisure, Sports Development and Public Open Spaces 

The overall challenge for sport and leisure is to 
continue to increase participation and 
progression in sport, whilst also improving 
customer experience.  
 
On 23 July 2012, the new Ten Pin Bowling and 
Indoor Bowling Rink opened at the re-named 
and re-modelled Jade Jones Pavilion in Flint.  
The new Soft Play area - Pirates of the Pavilion 
- opened on 30 July 2012.  
 
The challenge for Leisure Services in 2013/14 

and beyond is to secure Flintshire’s strong network of provision to support sporting 
participation and progression through controlling operating costs and increasing  
participation and income at all facilities.   
 
The improvement scheme for children’s play areas based upon an innovative match 
funding agreement between the County Council and Town & Community Councils will 
enter its fourth year in 2013/14.  We are working in partnership with Town & Community 
Councils to ensure progress is made towards addressing the deficiencies in play value 
identified in the Play Areas Survey conducted by the Play Safe & Space Consultancy in 
2010.   
 

Page 56



Page 17 of 67  
 
In April 2011, the Health, Social Care & Well Being Partnership Board endorsed the 
Creating an Active Flintshire Action Plan - the local response to the Welsh Government’s 
Physical Activity Action Plan.  Leisure Services is a key contributor to achieving the Action 
Plan’s core aim for every person to be active for ‘one day more’. 
 
 

Page 57



Page 18 of 67  
 

7. Long Term Aims  
 
As a Directorate we identify a range of areas in which we aspire to develop new and 
enhanced ways of working and improving outcomes over the next few years. 
 
Schools Services 
In School Improvement, we aim: 

• to achieve better learning outcomes, and wellbeing for all children and young people 
regardless of their socioeconomic background; 

• to improve and reduce variation in learning outcomes within and between classrooms 
and schools; 

• to support and develop the national priorities of: 
a. Improving literacy levels; 
b. Improving numeracy levels; and 
c. Reducing the impact of poverty on educational attainment; 

• to establish strong professional learning communities in schools where practitioners 
can develop and share their professional knowledge on learning and teaching 
pedagogy; 

• to implement the recommendations of recent Estyn inspections of Local Authority 
Education and Services for Children and Young People in Flintshire. 

 
Use and Improvement of Physical Assets 
As identified in the Strategic Assessment of Risks and Challenges, we aim to minimise the 
repairs and maintenance backlog and to provide school, youth, community and leisure 
accommodation fit for the 21st. Century.  
 
Improvement, replacement and rationalisation are all strategies that can be used for this 
long-term aim. The realisation of these aims is dependant on the funding available. This 
will be secured through a range of sources, including via grant funding from Welsh 
Government in the form of the 21st. Century Schools programme, the transformation 
agenda and the use of Council assets in the form of capital receipts and the ability to 
borrow prudentially. 
 
Collaborative working between Authorities in the areas of Capital Procurement and the 
sharing of skills are opportunities which will reduce the costs associated with the 
development of new building design, compliance with requirements and other costs 
associated with large-scale capital projects, by reducing duplication of effort. 
 

 
Safeguarding  
We have embedded a corporate system whereby our Human Resources Department 
inform the Inclusion Welfare Service of all new employees who require Child Protection 
Training. The training is an ongoing programme. Safeguarding and wellbeing is 
promoted in accordance with section 175 of the 2002 Education Act and guidance 
contained in Welsh Government Circular 005/2008. All schools and services adhere to 
the All Wales Child Protection Procedures and Local Safeguarding Children Board 
recommendations. The authority ensures all schools are aware of their responsibilities 
in safeguarding, making available appropriate training, model policies and procedures, 
providing advice, support and facilitating links and working in partnership with lead 
agencies. 
 
 

Page 58



Page 19 of 67  
 
Corporate Parenting 
The Directorate is committed to the principles of Corporate Parenting for all staff working 
within the local authority with children looked after by Flintshire. The core aims of 
educational and learning opportunities, respect for young people and freedom from 
poverty provide the framework for promoting better outcomes. The agenda is guided by 
the WG guidance Towards a Stable Life and Brighter Future 2007 and in Our Hands draft 
circular 2011. 
 
Children and Young People’s Plan & Wellbeing 
All individuals, services and organisations working with children, young people and 
families have a shared responsibility to improve outcomes and make a positive difference 
for all, and in particular, for our most disadvantaged and vulnerable groups.  Building on 
the previous successful three year plan, the key focus for the 2011-14 plan is to make a 
difference to the outcomes of vulnerable children and families through improved 
identification, referral, assessment and coordinated interventions including through the 
Families First Programme. Action plans seek to ensure that: 

• Children and Young People are cared for 

• Children and Young People are ready, able and encouraged to learn 

• Children and Young People have a healthy lifestyle 

• Children and Young People have time and space to play, and to participate in activities 

• Children and Young People are respected in all areas of their lives 

• Children and Young People are safe 

• Children, Young People and Families have the resources they need to maximise their 
opportunities 

• Workforce development needs are met 
 
A Strategy for Flintshire's Libraries 2013-16  
The strategic aim for the Library and Information Service, as agreed by the County 
Council, is to develop and improve the Library and Information Service to ensure an 
accessible, responsive and effective resource for inspiring reading, lifelong learning and 
self development, and to support economic activity, wellbeing and recreation. We will 
protect and consolidate provision through our network of viable service points and develop 
our quality services to improve customer satisfaction and our performance against the 
Welsh Government's Public Library Standards. The strategy for 2013-16 is due to be 
approved in April 2013.  
 
Leisure Strategy 2009-14 

There are three key strategic priorities: increasing participation in physical activity and 
enabling the Flintshire Community to develop its potential in sport, quality management of 
Leisure Facilities and renewal of the County’s leisure provision. Following significant 
progress over the first two years of the strategy, an internal strategy review was completed 
in October 2012 which will serve as the basis for the final year of the current strategy’s life 
in 2013/14. 
 

Arts Strategy 2013-16  

The Arts Strategy has the following vision: to support and develop the arts infrastructure, 
networks and partnerships within Flintshire and encourage enjoyment, participation and 
equal access to the arts. To facilitate the provision of quality arts opportunities for artists, 
the people of Flintshire and visitors to ensure that the arts are an integral part of 
Flintshire's cultural identity. 
 

Page 59



Page 20 of 67  
 
Play Strategy 2011-14 
The Flintshire Play Strategy 2011-14 was officially launched on 16 February 2012 and is 
aligned to the ‘Children and Families (Wales) Measure’ which places a duty on local 
authorities to provide sufficient play opportunities for children and young people in their 
areas. The strategy is underpinned by both the national Strategy and, regionally, via the 
work of NEW Play, the regional organisation for children’s play. The implementation and 
effectiveness of the strategy has been monitored, evaluated and revised accordingly in its 
first two years and this will inform the delivery of play in Flintshire as the strategy enters its 
final year.  
 
Strategies and Service Plans 
Our Service Plans and Strategies as mentioned in the Foreword give more detail on the 
activities, milestones and targets that will help us to achieve our long-term aims. The 
diagram on page 38 shows the interactive relationship of the County Vision, Council 
Priorities, Directorate aims and priorities, and our service delivery.

Page 60



Page 21 of 67  
 

8. Our Partnerships 
 
The Directorate will continue to work with organisations and other services within the 
Council who have knowledge, resources and desire to make a difference for our service 
users and the wider public through partnership work at a number of levels: National, 
Regional and Local. 
 
The Flintshire Local Service Board (LSB) is a county leadership group which has five 
principal roles: 

• Effective and trusting partnership relationships as a set of local leaders. 

• Consistent and effective governance and performance of strategic partnerships, e.g., 
Health, Social Care and Well Being Partnership 

• Identifying common issues as public bodies/employers. 

• Promoting collaboration in the design and provision of local public services and to 
make best economic use of local partner's resources, such as people and assets. 

• Discharging the responsibilities of the LSB - including producing a meaningful and fit 
for purpose County Vision.  

 
Working alongside the Flintshire Local Service Board (LSB) are the key Strategic 
Partnerships: 

• Children & Young People’s Partnership  

• Community Safety Partnership 

• Flintshire Housing Partnership 

• Health, Social Care and Well-being Partnership 

• Local Safeguarding Children Board 

• Regeneration Partnership 

• Voluntary Sector Compact 

• Youth Justice Service 
 

Collectively, the LSB and the Strategic Partnerships are known as 'Flintshire in 
Partnership'.  Flintshire's Strategic Partnerships are critically important in contributing 
towards the quality of life for the County of Flintshire.   

 
Flintshire County Council is committed to supporting the priorities of the LSB and our 
partnerships. The Directorate of Lifelong Learning directly supports the priorities of the 
following partnerships: 
 

 

• The Health, Social Care & Well Being Strategy 2011-14 
Leisure Services contributes to Outcome 3 (That people are a healthy weight for 
their height), Outcome 7 (That people with specific long term or chronic conditions 
receiving health and social services have options and influence over their lives) and 
Outcome 9 (That informal carers in Flintshire have options and influence over their 
lives). 

 

• Children & Young People’s Plan 2011-14:”Making a positive difference” 
The previous Children and Young People’s Partnership Plan (2008 – 2011), has put 
in place strong foundations for collaborative working practices both within Flintshire 
and with our regional partners. We are already delivering better outcomes for our 
children and young people, as evidenced by recent positive inspection reports and 

Page 61



Page 22 of 67  
 

external assessments. We have strengthened our partnership working approach to 
enable all organisations and individuals to understand how the outcomes within this 
plan can be delivered.  
 
We have also improved our use of population and management data so that we can 
make better informed decisions about priorities, and to ensure the most effective 
use of other strategic plans.  
 
Our plan supports the aims within the Child Poverty Strategy for Wales which 
includes the following aims of particular relevance to this Plan: 

• To reduce the number of families living in workless households 

• To improve the skill level of parents and young people in low income families so 
that they can secure well paid employment. 

• To reduce the inequalities that exists in health, education and economic 
outcomes for children living in poverty, by improving the outcomes of the 
poorest. 

 

• Workforce Development 
We have also considered the workforce development needs to deliver headline 
outcomes and we recognise and value the Welsh language and culture and other 
languages and cultures and will be mindful of this in  delivery of the outcomes. 

 

• Childcare Sufficiency Audit 2011 
Accessible and affordable childcare provision is an essential part of helping parents 
(including young parents) to access employment or learning opportunities. We have 
produced an audit of our Childcare provision. This “Childcare Sufficiency 
Assessment” has helped us to understand the childcare needs. 
 
The ‘Making a Positive Difference’ Plan is one of several high level or ‘umbrella’ 
plans that relate to improving the lives and life circumstances of everyone who lives 
and works in Flintshire. Each supports, and is supported by the others: 
 

Leisure Services contributes to the Families First Measure via the Play 

Development Team (which receives Families First funding).  During 2012/13, 

Leisure Services led the corporate response to the Welsh Government’s statutory 

requirement for local authorities to assess for sufficient play opportunities for 

children across the County.  Flintshire’s draft play sufficiency report was submitted 

to the Welsh Government on 1 March 2013 and received FCC Cabinet 

endorsement in April 2013.  

 

• Flintshire Community Learning Network,  

Strategic Plan 2010/11, Key Priority Areas: widening participation amongst 

disadvantaged or under-represented groups, Welsh medium and bilingual learning, 

basic skills and ESOL. The Library Service is lead FCC representative on the FCLN 

Strategic Group which is co-ordinated by the major deliverer, Deeside College. 

 

• Creating an Active Wales 

Leisure Services is a key contributor in producing and delivering a local (Flintshire) 
response to the Welsh Government’s Physical Activity Action Plan Creating an 

Page 62



Page 23 of 67  
 

Active Wales.  The high level target of the Action Plan is to encourage every 
Flintshire resident to do ‘one day more’.  
 

• NHS Wales  

Leisure Services actively contributes to the outcomes published in Our Healthy 
Future, the national strategy for improving public health, together with Betsi 
Cadwaladr University health Board’s Local Public Health Strategic Framework 
which outlines the regional Health Board’s response to the national strategy. 

 

• Work with Community Councils   

Partnership working with town and community councils has supported upgrades to 
play areas and the provision of the most comprehensive Summer play schemes in 
Wales. 
 

• School Partnership 
The current School/LA Partnership agreement formulated in 2009 is the subject of a 
review, embracing the developments associated with regional working and national 
priorities linked to the School Effectiveness Framework. 
 
Support for our schools is best captured in our policy and procedures for monitoring 
and supporting schools.  The policy places responsibilities upon both the school 
and the Local Authority.  During the ensuing years it will be necessary for the 
Directorate to review its policy in light of the WG improvement agenda and a move 
to greater regional working.  Any revised method of school improvement support will 
continue to adopt the key functions of: 

• Monitoring and evaluating school performance; 

• Challenging school performance; 

• Supporting schools;  and 

• Intervening where appropriate to enable school improvement 
 
 

• Local Safeguarding Children Board & Shadow Regional Board 
On 1st April 2011 the Flintshire and Wrexham Local Safeguarding Children’s Boards 
merged into one statutory partnership. The advantages of the merger are: 

• An improved and expanded knowledge and experience base from a wider range 
of professionals; 

• Efficient and effective business arrangements which make the best use of 
available financial and human resources across the range of member agencies; 

• Increased opportunities for joint learning and sharing of best practice, to improve 
consistency and sustainability of good practice across all agencies working to 
safeguard children and young people. 

 
Further work is underway to develop new regional and local arrangements to support 
safeguarding activity. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 63



Page 24 of 67  
 

9. Change and improve 
 
The requirement to change and improve is underpinned by the reduction in the national 
financial settlement and the Council’s ambition to modernise and streamline the 
organisation; through good housekeeping measures, service redesign or collaboration with 
partners.  This continues with the Council’s organisational change programme as we move 
into Phase III – Flintshire Futures. Appendix C contains a quadrant which shows the work 
being undertaken across the Council which contributes to both corporate change and 
regional collaboration, including that of the Lifelong Learning Directorate.  
 
Themes of ‘change’ have been developed which include the following projects: 

• Customer – Flintshire Connects; Customer access channels 

• Workforce – Agile and mobile working 

• Systems - Procurement 

• Facilities – Our buildings and their management 
 

These are corporate programmes of change and involve all Directorates to a greater or 
lesser extent dependent upon leadership arrangements and service configuration. 
 
In addition within Directorates, service reviews continue to be undertaken to modernise 
processes, embrace new thinking and create efficiencies. 
  
Collaboration with partners can take place on a national, regional, sub-regional or local 
basis reflecting where and how we can add value, reduce cost and improve service 
resilience.   Projects are at various stages of planning or delivery. 
 
CORPORATE CHANGE 
 
The Directorate continues to support the Council in its change programme, Flintshire 
Futures, to create a Council that is at the forefront of best practice across the UK.  Service 
reviews are currently underway that will enable our services to be delivered efficiently and 
in line with our customer expectations.  The key benefits of the reviews will be improved 
service delivery, improved customer access, efficiency savings and more opportunities for 
collaborative working. 
 
Several employees are members of the Lean academy and have already been fully 
involved in applying Lean methodology to service areas. 
The Directorate is also fully supportive of our employees in helping them adapt to 
organisational change.  The Directorate’s communications strategy sets out minimum 
standards for how we interact as employees, managers, Heads of Services and DMT.   
 
SERVICE CHANGE 
 

• School Modernisation Programme 
In order to secure better learning outcomes, better use of resources and to improve 
the learning environment, it is essential to review school buildings and to determine 
the most efficient means of bringing them up to the 21st. Century School Standard. 
The School Modernisation Strategy is designed to provide sufficient school places 
located in the right place, and which will be of the highest standard in terms of 
learning environment. The strategy includes the renewal, refurbishment and 

Page 64



Page 25 of 67  
 

rationalisation of school places to minimise surplus places in schools. This is 
covered in more detail at section 5 above. 

 

• Education Funding Formula Review 
The Education Funding Formula Review continues to be a key corporate 
Organisational and Change and Redesign Review.  Work on the formula has been 
ongoing throughout 2013/14 and there has been consultation at each stage with 
schools through the project teams, Heads Federations and the School Budget 
Forum.  It is planned that the review will be completed by the Autumn 2013 for 
implementation in the 2014/15 school budgets.   
 

• Inclusion Services Review 
A child only has one education and missed opportunities for learning can have a 
major impact on life chances. It is therefore important that we periodically review 
arrangements for additional learning needs (ALN) to ensure that we are well placed 
to evidence that children and young people who need extra help can receive the 
right support at the right time. Areas of focus include: 

o developing a continuum of provision for a diversity of need in different 
settings.  

o introducing an overarching framework which minimises possible barriers to 
learning and contributes to the raising standards agenda; 

o placing a greater responsibility on all schools to provide for the early 
identification of the diversity of need, assessment, planning and delivery of 
support programmes, and the monitoring of the subsequent progress of 
individual children who need support; 

o developing further collaborative working and the sharing of existing good 
practice, skills and knowledge between and across schools; 

o promoting the professional development of teachers and all other staff who 
are involved in meeting the additional needs of children; 

o developing more effective partnerships between the Education, Social 
Services, Health and other CYPP partners; and  

o delegating more of the ALN funds currently held centrally to schools. 
 

• Music Service Review  
A new operating model to protect and develop the Flintshire Music Service, with a 
three year funding commitment by the Council from 2013/14 has been approved.  

 

• Leisure & Culture Reviews 
Following the creation of the Culture and Leisure Division in the Directorate there is 
a requirement for a review of all services within the newly formed Division.  The 
review of the structure in Leisure Services is due to conclude in 2013/14.  The 
Leisure Services review will be complemented by a review of Cultural Services in 
order to achieve integrated, streamlined structures which are fit for purpose.  The 
Directorate wide review of  administration and support services will be relevant to 
this organisational redesign work. 
 
Leisure Partnership 
In June 2010, Flintshire County Council signed a four-year Partnering Agreement 
with Alliance Leisure Services for the re-development of the County’s leisure 
portfolio over the next four years.  In total, £5.5 million has been invested into 
Deeside Leisure Centre, which now boasts three regional attractions in the ice rink, 
Afon Spa and Evolution Extreme.  A further £2.5 million has been invested in an 

Page 65



Page 26 of 67  
 

indoor regional bowling centre and soft play area at the former Flint Pavilion Leisure 
Centre.  The remodelled leisure centre opened its new facilities in July 2012 and 
was renamed the Jade Jones Pavilion Flint in November 2012.  

 
The aim of the Partnering Agreement is to provide much needed capital investment 
in our leisure stock and to increase both income and participation levels through the 
provision of popular choice recreation activities 

 

• Youth Service Review 
Wales is the only European country to have a statutory basis for the Youth Service 
provision. Welsh Government amendments to the Learning and Skills Act 2000 
place a duty on Local Authorities to provide Youth Support Services. 
 
The Youth Service is focused on the provision of high quality, responsive and 
accessible services as a universal entitlement. 
A high quality and dynamic Integrated Youth Support Service will contribute to 
improving the quality off life and wellbeing of Flintshire residents. The development 
of Children and Young People’s skill through informal and non-formal learning 
experiences will also contribute to educational achievement, and ultimately to an 
improvement in economic prosperity. 
 
The service review will be undertaken under the supervision of the new Service 
manager, who will have the responsibility to develop a vision for the future Youth 
Service, working with Youth Services Staff and service users. 
 

• Facilities Review 
In order to secure the future viability of the various facilities services, organisational 
redesign and practice change is being implemented as part of the agreed review 
programme. The aim of this work is to generate additional income through new 
business, control material costs, promote flexibility in staffing arrangements and 
reduce management and supervisory overheads. 
 

 
REGIONAL COLLABORATION   

 
• North Wales Transforming Transport Project  

The first phase of this project was completed in 2011, and good housekeeping 
measures identified by the review have been implemented. Longer term structural 
reform across the region under the oversight of Taith is continuing to be 
progressed. In Flintshire, consultation on entitlement policy changes are currently 
underway and action plans are in place to achieve operational efficiencies during 
2013/14.   
 

• School Improvement Service (GwE) 
The Regional School Effectiveness and Improvement Service (GwE) is designed to 
be a new joint regional service serving the six local authorities in the region. It will 
cover the school improvement duties and services to monitor and challenge, and 
provide curriculum support and continued professional development for schools. 
Implementation of the model commenced from April 2013. 
 
 
 

Page 66



Page 27 of 67  
 

• Out of County Placements  
Commissioning arrangements for out of county placements have been reviewed by 
the local authority and the BCUHB. Whilst the work to implement new placement 
option appraisal, commissioning and contracting arrangements has been 
successful, there is more that can be achieved. The next stages involve developing 
and maintaining a new contractor framework. They also include further work to 
determine which placements can be delivered locally by commissioning new 
provision and services locally or in partnership with neighbouring authorities.  
 

• 21st Century Schools – Capital Procurement North Wales (CPNW) 
Five North Wales Authorities, including Flintshire, have developed a collaborative 
framework for the efficient procurement of Capital projects for the purpose of the 
21st. Century Schools programme. 

 
 

LOCAL COLLABORATION 
 

• Apprenticeships & Employment 
Building on successful collaborative working to reduce the level of young people not 
in education, employment and training to the lowest level in Wales, the LSB has 
commissioned a further ambitious programme. The programme seeks to 
significantly increase the range and number of apprenticeship, work experience, 
training and employment opportunities available to young people across Flintshire’s 
diverse employers. 

 
• Children’s Play Areas 

Within the County Council’s budget for 2013/14, £140k has been allocated for the 
improvement of children’s play areas in Flintshire.  For the fourth successive year, 
Leisure Services has invited Town & Community Councils to work in partnership 
with the County Council on a match-funding basis (£1 for £1) in order to secure 
improvements to play areas.  During 2013/14, Leisure Services will work on 
improvement projects in partnership with 17 Town & Community Councils.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 67



Page 28 of 67  
 

MANAGING PERFORMANCE 
 

10. Comparing Our Performance with our Peers 
 
As part of our performance management arrangements we routinely compare our 
performance with our peers, top quartile and the ‘Welsh Average’ as another method of 
measuring our performance. We do this to:  

• assess performance objectively; 

• identify areas where improvement is needed; 

• identify other organisations with processes resulting in better performance, with 
a view to their adoption and  

• test whether improvement programmes have been successful. 
 

This approach is also used to assist compilation of the Authority’s Annual Performance 
Report and allows the public to judge whether we are making effective use of our 
resources, compared to other authorities.  
 
A selection of the key comparator performance indicators for the directorate is shown 
below. These are closely aligned to our key priorities for the forthcoming year and to the 
Directorate Service Plans.  
 

 
 

At Key Stage 2, there has been a steady improvement in performance at level 4+ over the 
past few years. There has been an improvement in the CSI at the end of Key Stage 2 over 
the past three years, but a decline in the relative Authority position which fell in 2012 to 
16th (4.3 percentage points below 6th position). Performance at 81.3% is below the Wales 
average of 82.6% which needs to be improved upon. 

 
 
 
 

EDU/003 - The percentage of pupils at the end of Key Stage 2 achieving Core 

Subject Indicator

82.06

81.3080.80

78.26

80.03

78.36

78.5

82 81.7

76

72

74

76

78

80

82

84

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

Year

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e

Flintshire Wales Average Target

Page 68



Page 29 of 67  
 

 
 

When compared with similar authorities nationally, performance of Flintshire learners at 
the Key Stage 3 Core Subject Indicator is good overall. The Welsh Government Key Stage 
3 and Key Stage 4 Value Added Summary 2010/11 rates Flintshire’s outcomes in the first 
quartile with a significant value added for model 1 and in the second quartile for model 2a.  

 

76.0% of Flintshire pupils achieved the Core Subject Indicator at Key Stage 3 in 2012 an 
increase of 2.2% on 2011 and continuing the upward trend over the last five years.  
Despite this improvement, the gap between Flintshire and the Wales average, at 3.5 
percentage points, is lower than in previous years and Flintshire is placed 7th in Wales.  

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EDU/004 - The percentage of pupils at the end of Key Stage 3 achieving Core 

Subject Indicator

72.5

76.0073.80

69.27 68.1

63.84

66
70

74.5
77.2

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

Year

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e

Flintshire Wales Average Target

Page 69



Page 30 of 67  
 

EDU/017 - The percentage of pupils aged 15 at the preceding 31st August 

w ho achieved Level 2 Threshold including a GCSE grade A* to C in English or 

Welsh First Language and Mathematics

49.4 50.1 51.1

58.5 58.2 59.655.5
59.3

62.8

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

Year

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e

Flintshire Wales Average Target

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

59.6% of Flintshire learners achieved the key Level 2 Threshold including Mathematics 
and English or Welsh First Language indicator at Key Stage 4 in 2012. This was an 
increase of 1.4%  on the figure achieved in 2011 and continues the upward trend of recent 
years.  The gap between Flintshire outcomes and those across all of Wales was 8.5% and 
Flintshire ranked 2nd of the 22 Welsh Authorities in 2012. 
 
 

EDU 017 - The percentage of pupils aged 15 at the 
preceding 31st August who achieved Level 2 

Threshold including a GCSE grade A* to C in English 
or Welsh First Language and Mathematics 

Academic 
Year 

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 

Financial 
Year 

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 

Flintshire 58.5 58.2 59.6   

Wales 
Average 

49.4 50.1 51.1   

Target   55.5 59.3 62.8 

Page 70



Page 31 of 67  
 

 
 
Pupil attendance in primary schools in Flintshire has been consistently above the Welsh 
average. This will be further enhanced by school management training, Governor training 
and Inclusion Welfare interventions. 

 
 
Pupil attendance in secondary schools has consistently been above the Welsh average, 
this will further improve with the introduction of a number of Welsh Government initiatives. 
Including a regional approach to improving attendance. Training has also been afforded to 
school management teams and governors in this respect to further improve the rates of 
attendance. The Inclusion Welfare Team is also looking at new and innovative ways of 
improving attendance 
 
Unauthorised absences within the secondary sector have consistently been either the 
lowest or second lowest recorded for Wales since 2006/07. 
 

EDU/016a - The percentage of pupil attendance in primary schools

93.8593.76

93.3

93.05

94 94
94.1

94.6

92.00

92.50

93.00

93.50

94.00

94.50

95.00

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

Year

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e

Flintshire Wales Average Target

EDU/016b - The percentage of pupil attendance in secondary schools

92.45
92.19

9191

92.5 92.5
92.6

93.3

89.5

90

90.5

91

91.5

92

92.5

93

93.5

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

Year

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e

Flintshire Wales Average Target

Page 71



Page 32 of 67  
 

 
 
School Head teachers have received training on the process of exclusion and how and 
when exclusion is an appropriate sanction. The emphasis has been on reducing the 
numbers of days that a learner is excluded. There has also been a guidance document 
shared with schools on recommended tariffs for exclusion. These interventions will reduce 
the numbers of days lost to fixed term exclusions. 
 
This indicator has been replaced by the number of days lost due to Fixed Term exclusions: 
 
Target 2012/13 – 509 
 

 
 

LCL/003 - The percentage of library material requests supplied within 7 

calendar days

78.82

81.03

71.87

69

70.54

69

75 75

79

75

62

64

66

68

70

72

74

76

78

80

82

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

Year

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e

Flintshire Wales Average Target

EDU/010b - The percentage of school days lost due to fixed term 

exclusions in secondary schools 

0.11

0.14 0.131
0.14

0.06 0.06

0.00

0.02

0.04

0.06

0.08

0.10

0.12

0.14

0.16

2010/11 2011/12

Year

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e

Flintshire Wales Average Target

Page 72



Page 33 of 67  
 
Flintshire is ranked 11th in Wales for this performance indicator.  In March 2011, Leisure 
Services purchased Tableau reporting software for its LMS System.  The number of 
recorded visits is now based upon a true participation report rather than the previous sales 
report.  A true participation report was unavailable with our previous reporting software.   
 
Using Tableau software to interrogate participation data retrospectively, the 2010/11 value 
is 8,742 visits and the 2011/12 value is 9,069 visits.  Participation, therefore, increased in 
2011/12 despite the decrease displayed in the chart below (which uses a 2010/11 value 
that was submitted prior to the use of Tableau).  Previously submitted figures were, 
unfortunately, inflated, though they were submitted using the best reporting method 
available at the time.   
 

 
 
 
11. 2013- 14 Improvement Targets  
 
The performance targets reported to the Executive and considered by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees comprise: -  

• National Indicators as prescribed by the Welsh Government (WG); and 

• Local Indicators set by the council as meaningful to monitor performance over and 
above the prescribed measures.  

 
A review of the categorisation and setting of targets is undertaken annually by Heads of 
Service with management input.  Internal challenge of these proposals and consideration 
of the action plans which support the targets has been undertaken by Overview and 
Scrutiny members. Appendix E shows the Improvement Targets for the Directorate. 
Progress against these targets will be monitored by regular performance reports. In 
particular, end of year evaluations will be carried out to measure the impact of strategies 
and actions in the Estyn Action Plan on pupil outcomes. It should be noted that some of 
the targets that relate to Looked After Children (LAC) are the joint reporting responsibility 
of Lifelong Learning and Children’s Services. Targets are set in line with officers’ detailed 
knowledge of the individual pupils within the cohort.  
 
Targets for 2013-14 are set out in Appendix E. 
 

Page 73



Page 34 of 67  
 

12. Risk Management 
 
The Council’s Strategic Assessment of Risks and 
Challenges provides a detailed assessment of the 
Council’s risk and challenges and a basis for action. 
It defines and details the priorities for change and 
improvement and is supported by our business 
planning processes and disciplines of service planning, risk management, financial 
planning, resource planning, monitoring and review. 
 
As a tool it collates the risks the Council has to consider, with regular updating and 
reporting on progress.  It uses a red, amber, green (RAG) matrix to evaluate the current 
risk status and predicts the period when the risk will be mitigated or managed within the 
Council’s risk appetite. 
 
The strategic assessment of risks and challenges comprises three sections: 

1. Community Leadership - local challenges which cannot be maintained solely by the 
Council (e.g. affordable housing, County Vision, public health and primary health 
care). 

2. Council Delivery – public service challenges which are mainly within the control and 
responsibility of the Council (e.g. housing, school buildings, and waste 
management). 

3. Council Governance – challenges of organisational governance and management 
(e.g. finance, human resources, information and communications technology). 

 
The priorities identified within the SARC that are within the remit and responsibility of the 
Directorate of Lifelong Learning are: 

• Leisure – Revenue Funding (SARC reference CD10a) 

• Leisure – Capital Projects (SARC reference CD10b) 

• Leisure – Play Strategy (SARC reference CD10c) 

• School Buildings/School Modernisation (SARC reference CD 20: Condition, 
suitability and sufficiency of education assets). 

• School Improvement Regional project (SARC reference CD22). 
 
As well as having full responsibility for the priorities identified above there are other 
priorities that the Lifelong Learning Directorate has an impact on: 

• Economic Regeneration Strategy (SARC reference CL09);  

• Skills Needs of Employers (SARC reference CL12); 

• Transport Arrangements for Service Users (SARC reference CD06); 

• Procurement of Independent Sector Placements for Looked After Children (SARC 
reference CD23) 

• Asset Management (SARC reference CG05a) 

• Asset Rationalisation (SARC reference CG05b) 

Page 74



Page 35 of 67  
 

13. Business Continuity 
 
Business Continuity management is essentially about how the organisation plans in 
advance effective responses to business interruptions so that it can stay up and running, 
and then get back to normal as soon as possible. Over the last three years Flintshire has 
developed a more resilient approach to business continuity.  
 
The Mission Critical Services were identified by considering the vulnerable areas of the 
organisation, interdependencies, the impact of loss, and timescales for loss,  to identify the 
critical services/functions within the Council - those services/functions that must be 
maintained or recovered as a priority in the event of a business interruption occurring. 
 
Important school exams have been identified as Mission Critical and have Business 
Continuity Plans in place, allowing us to respond to key interruptions that we could face. 
 
Throughout the Directorate, business continuity plans have been developed to 
complement the overall risk arrangements, help maintain services during and after any 
major disruption and promote recovery. The Director is also a member of Strategic 
Business Response Team. 
 
A web based “emergency school closures” facility has been launched which enables 
Headteachers to input details of any school closures directly on to Flintshire’s web sites, in 
order that parents, pupils and the press are kept up to date about any schools which have 
been closed at short notice. This facility continues to be tested through the adverse 
weather conditions and constitutes a key feature of communicating emergency school 
closures. Further development of the system is ongoing to incorporate the Council’s social 
networking sites as a further communication tool to relieve website traffic. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 75



Page 36 of 67  
 

14. Working with Regulators 
 
Flintshire County Council welcomes the 
opportunity to work with regulators in assessing the 
quality of our self-evaluation and services, 
together with identifying strategies for further 
improvement. 
 
The Council is regulated in several ways.  Externally there are a number of regulatory 
bodies, the main ones being Wales Audit Office, Estyn and Care and Social Services 
Inspectorate for Wales, and the Health and Safety Executive. Internally the organisation 
regulates itself through its Internal Audit function, Audit Committee and Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees. 
 
The most recent regulatory work has been Estyn’s monitoring visit in February 2013.  It 
was followed up with a formal letter including the following: 
 
Formal Recommendations 
There were no new statutory formal recommendations made in the letter. 
 
Estyn’s Monitoring Visit Judgement Recommendations and Council response. 
Overall, the team judged that the local authority had made good progress towards 
addressing the recommendations in the 2011 inspection report. 
 

Ref Recommendation and Judgement Response 

R1 Improve standards and performance to 
reduce the percentage of schools that are 
in the bottom 25% when compared to 
similar schools across Wales and reduce 
the gap in performance between boys and 
girls. 

 
This recommendation has been partly 
addressed. 

Estyn recognise that the Local 
Authority has improved its 
arrangements to support and 
challenge schools.  The Authority 
needs to continue to monitor these 
arrangements to ensure improved 
outcomes for learners. 
 
The gap in performance between 
boys and girls is less than the 
average for Wales in most indicators 
although it is larger at key Stage 2. 
 

R2 Improve the standard and quality of 
provision in primary schools by addressing 
a trend of declining attendance; reducing 
fixed term exclusions; and reducing school 
balances and deficits in line with national 
guidelines. 

 
This recommendation has been largely 
addressed. 

Estyn acknowledge that attendance in 
primary schools has improved and is 
good in comparison to similar areas 
on the free schools meals benchmark. 
 
Estyn also acknowledges that there 
has been a downward trend in the 
number of days lost through 
exclusions since 2010. 
 
Estyn also confirmed that the 
Authority has put in place good 
systems to reduce school balances 
and deficits in line with legislative 

Page 76



Page 37 of 67  
 

limits. 
 
The Authority needs to continue to 
monitor progress on attendance and 
exclusions, together with assessing 
the impact of the changes to funding 
system. 
 

R3 R3 Improve how senior officers and all 
elected members work together to improve 
standards for all learners; improve self-
evaluation and reporting to members; and 
reorganise secondary schools, reduce 
surplus places and make better use of 
resources. 

 
This recommendation has been largely 
addressed. 

Estyn concluded that key elected 
members understand well the 
priorities for improvement in the 
Council and support officers in 
addressing the recommendations 
from the previous inspection.  In 
recent months elected members and 
senior officers are recognised as 
having been willing to take difficult 
decisions in order to address these 
priorities. 
There is further work to extend the 
School Performance Monitoring 
Group’s work into the secondary 
sector.  We also recognise the need 
to simplify arrangements for self-
evaluation, performance planning and 
reporting. 
 
Whilst more rapid progress in School 
Modernisation is recognised by Estyn, 
the Council recognises that there is 
much more work ahead to complete 
the programme.  This remains a 
priority for the Council.   
 

R4 Reduce the number of days’ education 
that learners in Flintshire miss due to fixed 
term exclusions of six days or more in all 
of its secondary schools. 
 
This recommendation has been largely 
addressed. 

Estyn recognise that the Local 
Authority has improved its processes 
for dealing with poor behaviour by 
pupils.  The rate of fixed term 
exclusions of six days or more has 
improved and unverified data 
indicates that it has nearly halved 
over the last two years. 
 
The Authority needs to continue to 
monitor impact of its strategy and 
challenge individual schools where 
appropriate. 

R5 Improve the monitoring arrangements for 
the Children and Young People’s 
Partnership to effectively track the 
progress of children and young people 
This recommendation has been partly 

Estyn recognise that the Children and 
Young People’s Partnership has a 
consistent approach to self-evaluation 
enabling there to be valuable 
information about impact of the range 

Page 77



Page 38 of 67  
 

addressed. 
 

of interventions supporting children, 
young people and their families. 
 
There is a need to more fully capture 
and disseminate the progress of 
children and young people beyond 
priorities and projects.  This includes 
sharing the analysis more regularly 
with schools and the Local Service 
Board.  
 

R6 Prioritise areas for improvement identified 
in its self-evaluation of education services. 
 
This recommendation has been fully 
addressed. 
 

Estyn recognises that this has been 
fully addressed through appropriate 
plans.  Progress is reviewed regularly 
and is reported in the authority’s 
annual self-evaluation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 78



Page 39 of 67  
 

15. Governance and Leadership 

Flintshire County Council has 
adopted a Council planning 
Framework which is a family of 
co-related documents which state 
ambition, priorities and targets 
against a governance framework 
of values, roles and 
responsibilities. It takes us on a 
journey from the core of the 
organisation; its priorities and 
values, through to how these are 
reflected in the Directorates and 
services, and how we interact 
with partners and our customers 
and communities.  
 
In addition to this Directorate Plan, the Heads of Service for the Directorate each prepare a 
Service Plan annually to show each of the directorate priorities will be achieved and their 
achievement monitored. The delivery of the service plans are monitored on a quarterly 
basis through the preparation of quarterly performance reports. These reports are 
prepared for the Council’s Cabinet and are also presented to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees for consideration by Members. 
 

Leadership 

Change can be both challenging and exciting and we are sensitive 
to our staff as we progress with our transformation agenda. Further 
investment has been made in management development training 
to assist our managers with the skills needed to help transform and 
modernise services. All managers across the Directorate are 
committed to meaningful line management supervision and team 
meetings. Spending quality time with teams in this way enables a 
two way dialogue about the vision for Lifelong Learning and an 
opportunity for the senior managers to hear and really understand 
the concerns of front line staff. 

 
 
We also encourage all our employees regardless of their role or grade to identify positive 
changes to improve services and achieve efficiencies and in doing so help to deliver our 
vision and priorities.  Our employees undertake training to ensure their skills are kept up to 
date as well as being offered opportunities to further enhance their skills. 

 
We understand 
that leadership 
is about taking 
ownership and 
leading change 
to make a 
positive 

difference. 

Page 79



Page 40 of 67  
 

Managing Our Resources 
 
16. People Strategy 
 
The Lifelong Learning Directorate recognises that employees are our most valuable asset.  
Without our people, the Directorate would be unable to continue to improve and deliver a 
range of services to residents and Schools in Flintshire.  To ensure that the people 
implications are considered in all of the Directorate activities, the Lifelong Learning 
Directorate People Plan has been developed which contains specific people related 
priorities found within each of the Service Plans. The people priorities for the Lifelong 
Learning Directorate for 2013 / 2014 are: 
 
Organisational Change 

• To continue to develop a change management programme approach for the 
Directorate to deliver planned service reviews and changes to services using 
agreed and evolving Organisational Design principles, The Jobs at this Level 
Framework, Project Management principles and consideration of different 
approaches of working such as agile and lean.  This will ensure consistency in 
approach across the Council and well planned communication and consultation with 
employees and trade unions.  

• To use workforce and succession planning and the Organisational Change and 
Redundancy Policy to proactively minimise redundancies across the Directorate. 

• To deliver/implement the Council’s Welsh Language Scheme e.g. by assessing the 
Welsh Language Skills Requirements for each new post to deliver services 
bilingually in accordance with customer preference. 

 
Single Status Implementation 

• To proactively manage communication to employees in the lead up to the 
finalisation and implementation of the Single Status Agreement.  This will ensure 
that employees have a clear understanding of the objectives of Single Status, the 
project plan and the impact of proposed changes upon the individual so that those 
employees, who partake in the ballot, have all the information necessary to make 
an informed choice. 

• To manage the implications of the outcomes of the Single Status Agreement by 
identifying areas of risk for the Directorate and planning solutions to manage those 
risks. 

• To ensure managers are sufficiently trained to understand the impact of the Single 
Status Agreement on working practices and employment policies.  

 
Performance Management, Learning and Development 

• To develop a workforce and succession plan that fully understands workforce 
information, the business/service plans, identifies future skills needs and gaps and 
plans how to meet these. 

• To ensure that all employees within the Directorate have an Annual Appraisal from 
which a Personal Development Plan is agreed that contributes directly to the 
achievement of the service/ directorate objectives. 

 
 
Effective Resource Management  

• To use the workforce and succession planning and business planning framework to 
proactively manage the use of agency workers, consultants, temporary, fixed term, 

Page 80



Page 41 of 67  
 

casual/ relief workers and secondments.  To ensure the most effective use of 
resources whilst maintaining service levels.  

• To use workforce information to proactively and consistently monitor and manage 
absence, setting appropriate improvement targets, as part of the Attendance 
Management Strategy.   

 
Collaborative working 

• To develop good practice principles to lead and participate effectively in 
collaborative working projects to benefit service users across partner organisations. 

• To continue to develop opportunities to work with trade union colleagues to further 
develop a positive and inclusive employee relations climate. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



Page 42 of 67  
 

17. Medium Term Financial Strategy and Plan 
 
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
2011/2015 was adopted by the Council in June 2011.  The 
MTFS provides a framework for the financial principles 
through which revenue and capital resources are forecast, 
organised and managed to deliver the Council’s vision and 
strategic objectives. 
 
Integral to the MTFS is the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) which forecasts funding 
levels and resource requirements over the medium term, identifies the ‘gap’ between the 
two and enables specific actions to be identified and taken to balance the budget and 
manage resources. 
 
The first of two revisions to the MTFP has been written in May with a further revision 
expected in October. The aims of the revision at 31 May 2013 are: 
 

• The Council is committed to further develop its work on the MTFP, fully 
incorporating the financial implications of all efficiencies and savings programmes in 
order to determine the projected shortfalls (or surplus) for future annual budgets.  to 
present an updated forecast of the impacts of the changing and worsening national 
fiscal position, and inflationary trends, on the core resources available to the 
Council to meet its priorities and maintain its services 

• to present a first forecast of the investment needed to support the priorities of the 
Council 

• to present, by combing the above, the updated revenue ‘gap’ to be bridged by 
organisational change, efficiencies and choices between services 

 
The ‘headline’ figures with regard to the updated MTFP show an estimated shortfall in 
funding of £8.5m for 2014/15 rising to £28.5m over the 5 year period 2014/15 – 2018/19.  
 
Work is underway with regard to reviewing the School Formula with a view to 
implementing any budgetary changes from 2014/15.  Following completion of this work 
consideration will need to be given as to the extent of any proposed changes in the context 
of the overall MTFP.  This could potentially increase the projected shortfall over the 
medium term and an update will be required. 
 
As part of the ongoing work to develop and update the MTFP the following adjustment 
from Lifelong Learning has also been identified:- 
 
Schools Demography 

• A review of latest estimated pupil numbers indicated an efficiency of £0.255m in 
2014/15 and £0.278m in 2015/16, although this changes to a pressure of £0.118m 
in 2016/17, £0.240m in 2017/18 and £0.222m in 2018/19. 

 
 
 
 
The development and broadening of our programme for organisational modernisation and 
change will be central to the Council’s protection of key services, the achievement of its 

Page 82



Page 43 of 67  
 
priorities, and its very survival as a competent unit of local government. The broadening of 
the programme will include:-  

• cross investment into priorities of political choice through a challenging review of our 
current base budgets 

• structural reviews of the Council and its operating models and functions 

• functional reviews using a strategic approach to Value for Money 

• continued and new cross organisational reviews under the Flintshire Futures 
Programme 

The Directorate will need to deliver on agreed efficiencies whilst continuing to evaluate our 
services to identify further opportunities through our change and improve projects. 

 
The financial implications for this Directorate are summarised below:   
     

 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

 £m £m £m 

    

Pressures 2.159 1.916 0.177 

    

Efficiencies    

Fees and Charges 0.414 0.596 0.656 

Service Change 0.242 0.247 0.247 

Procurement 0.466 0.507 0.507 

Organisational Design 0.052 0.052 0.052 

Other 0.132 0.132 0.132 

Page 83



Page 44 of 67  
 

18. Asset Plan 
 
Key asset management strategies include the following: 

• The Corporate Asset Management Plan 2010-15 together with the Carbon 
Reduction Strategy, emphasises the need to focus future investment on properties 
which directly support service delivery, including the potential to create multi-
function accommodation with drop in facilities for officers, one-stop shops for 
residents and the possibility of sharing facilities with other organisations. This will 
inform our approach to service development within Culture and Leisure. 
 

• School Modernisation Strategy outlines the Authority’s responsibility for best 
management of educational assets.  In managing assets we will continue to give 
priority to: 

o amalgamating  Infant and Junior schools where possible; 
o completing the 14-19 transformation programme and the Secondary 

Education Review; 
o removing temporary accommodation to reduce revenue liabilities; 
o removing excessive surplus places (above 10% across Flintshire); 
o rationalising premises where possible having regard for long-term needs, 

and optimising capital receipts; 
o developing and approving a Local Planning Guidance document to secure 

contributions towards education needs; 
o investing in improving standards of accommodation and planned 

development for renewal of schools; 
o investing in making premises DDA compliant; 
o investing in improvements for Early Years, Foundation Phase Development, 

and curriculum refurbishments; 
o continuing to utilise “partnering”, a collaborative approach to construction that 

benefits all parties, based on best value, judged on pre-determined 
combinations of quality and cost;  

o developing schemes to be energy efficient and sustainable buildings to 
reduce impact upon future revenue budgets; 

o investing through the Capital Repair and Maintenance programme to reduce 
backlog; 

o identifying alternative sources of funding (including prudential borrowing) to 
support the continuation of the Capital Building Programme. 

 
 
 

 

Page 84



Page 45 of 67  
 

19. ICT Strategy 
 
The Council’s ICT strategy has been developed with priority work streams under the 
following five themes:  

• Change – ICT supporting and enabling service and organisational change  

• Customer – improving services both for the internal customer in delivering high 
quality and effective ICT, and for the external customer in terms of improved access 
to the council and improved service delivery  

• Capacity – making most effective use of resources and maximising capacity both in 
terms of technology, information & expertise  

• Consolidation – consolidating existing resources and good practice to provide an 
improved ICT service to the organisation  

• Collaboration – using ICT to enable more effective internal and external 
collaboration. Identifying opportunities to collaborate in the delivery and 
development of ICT services  

 
A wide variety of projects are being developed within the Directorate under each of these 
themes, examples of which are as follows: 
 
SCHOOLS 
 

• ICT in Education – aims to deliver effective schools, empowered teachers and 
competent learners, now and into the future. A guaranteed, high quality broadband 
infrastructure throughout Wales still remains an essential prerequisite for 
improvement and this has been realised by WG who have provided £39M of 
funding across Wales. This funding will provide a good level of connectivity to each 
and every school in the county and also provide upgrades to internal school 
networks. The value of Virtual Learning Environments has also been recognised 
nationally and the Authority is happy to support the National Hwb initiative which will 
provide suitable Virtual teaching and learning spaces for all schools, especially at 
Primary level. Moodle which is supported through the RNDP will still be the VLE of 
choice at Secondary level. Support services will continue to enhance teaching and 
learning through improving information management by facilitating collaborative 
working and promote effective partnerships to develop a sustainable regional 
curriculum network with the Regional Improvement Service and Consortia groups. 
The regional Management Information for Schools Improvement Group is looking 
specifically at the data and information issues associated with regional delivery.  

 
DIRECTORATE 
 

• Work alongside Corporate ICT to prioritise ICT needs after analysing the results 
from the hardware and software survey and inventory of the Directorate. 

 

• Website - improvements continue to be made to the Lifelong Learning pages of the 
Flintshire website, and significant progress has been made with Leisure Services. 
This has included the development of an online booking facility and activity 
database for customers. Work is also planned to increase content and improve 
functionality of web based information provided by Libraries, Culture and Heritage 
to bring about increased channel switch from face to face or telephone interaction to 
web based service provision. The LA intranet for schools continues to be well used 
and staff across all directorate areas are contributing resources to support schools. 

Page 85



Page 46 of 67  
 

A new version of the Intranet will be launched to reflect the changes to services as 
a result of the regonalisation agenda. 
 

• Electronic Document and Records Management System – Records 
Management will have a significant contribution to make to the realisation of the 
benefits of this corporate project. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 86



Page 47 of 67  
 

20. Customer Access and Care 
 
The provision of a high quality, positive customer 
experience continues to be a priority for the Directorate and 
we are continually striving to improve the way we deliver our 
services. This includes ensuring corporate service 
standards are met, listening to our customers and 
analysing complaints data and feedback.  
 
The Directorate is working corporately as part of the Channel Shift Project to identify how 
our customers contact us and the access channel used, to enable us to review current 
procedures, reduce avoidable contact and remove duplication. Although corporately there 
is to be a focus on web access the project will also be aiming to deliver an enhanced 
customer experience irrespective of the access channel the customer chooses to use. In 
addition to this, significant improvements are already being made to the Lifelong Learning 
website, starting with Leisure Services. This includes the development of an online 
booking facility and activity database for customers. Work is also planned to increase 
content and improve functionality of web based information provided by Libraries, Culture 
and Heritage to bring about increased channel switch from face to face or telephone 
interaction to web based service provision. 
 
The Directorate has started to develop a Business Support Unit that will be a first point of 
contact for internal and external customers. We are also represented on the Cross 
Organisational Admin Review Project Team. The project will ensure a modern, flexible and 
cost effective administrative support service, responding to the needs and future 
requirements of the organisation and our customers. 
 

Page 87



Page 48 of 67  
 

21. Equalities and Welsh Language 
 
Equalities 
Promoting equality and addressing discrimination and harassment improves the life 
chances of local citizens and contributes to creating a more tolerant, cohesive and 
prosperous society in which individuals can actively participate in the economy of the 
community.  
 
We recognise that our community and workforce are diverse and come from a range of 
backgrounds and cultures. We also recognise that many people face different barriers to 
services and employment and, as a major public sector service provider and employer we 
have a responsibility to address these barriers. Local people have a right to expect that 
public resources are used to deliver quality goods, services and works that meet their 
diverse needs and that they will be treated fairly and with dignity and respect. Equality is 
an integral part of providing customer focussed services and is an essential element of 
becoming an “Employer of Choice”. We are committed to promoting equality, valuing 
diversity and developing a culture where discrimination and harassment are not tolerated. 
 
As required by the public sector specific equality duties, Flintshire County Council have set 
out equality objectives and developed a Strategic Equality Plan for 2012-16 which details 
the steps we will take to achieve the objectives. The Directorate will implement and 
monitor the relevant actions from the Strategic Equality Plan and ensure they are 
embedded in service plans. 
 
Equality Impact Assessments (EIA) are an integral part of service reviews. EIA’s are being 
actively rolled out to ensure that both existing and new policies promote equality. Training 
for managers on how to carry out an effective EIA is ongoing. 
 
The development of new schools and the modification of existing buildings is influenced by 
the need to meet with the requirements of DDA, and to carry out reasonable adjustments 
for pupils with issues of access. 
 
Welsh Language 
The Welsh language is an essential part of the cultural identity and character of Wales. 
The 2011 Census reported challenges in increasing the number of Welsh speakers in 
Wales and indeed in Flintshire and the language remains in a fragile state. In its strategy 
for the Welsh language, A Living Language – A Language for Living, the Welsh 
Government says ‘Qwe need to do more than ever before to ensure that the language 
survives.  There is no room for complacency, and we must guard against any belief that 
enough is being done at present to safeguard its future.  Almost all fluent Welsh speakers 
speak Welsh on a daily basis, but they need more opportunities to use the language in all 
spheres of lifeQ in the workplace and in services to the citizen.’ 
 
Flintshire County Council understands the impact that its activities can have on the 
sustainability of the Welsh language, and we take seriously our duty to promote, support 
and safeguard the Welsh language.  We also take seriously our endeavours to achieve 
excellence in customer service, and we believe that providing language choice is key to 
good customer service. 
By implementing our Welsh Language Scheme we will do all that we can to: 
  

• create more opportunities for customers to use the Welsh in their dealings with us by 

Page 88



Page 49 of 67  
 

ensuring that more of our services are available in Welsh 

• ensure that services delivered in Welsh services are as instant and as good as 
services delivered in English 

• create and sustain a working environment for our employees in which the Welsh 
language is both visible and audible 

• contribute to the realisation of the broader national strategy. 
   
We will improve our Welsh-medium services by:                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

• assessing and confirming the extent to which our services meet the requirements of 
our Welsh Language Scheme 

• identifying and implementing improvement actions and staffing strategies where we fall 
short of providing full bilingual services 

• monitoring and reporting progress against the improvement actions. 
 
The Directorate is working corporately to renew the Welsh Language Skills Strategy.  A 
number of actions have been identified from the Welsh Language Board review, which will 
form the basis for improvement in training and opportunities for the Welsh language to be 
used in a way which meets with the requirements of the Welsh Language Act. 
 
 

Page 89



Page 50 of 67  
 

22. Energy and Resource Consumption 
 
All Flintshire buildings, whether new build or refurbishment schemes, are assessed in 
terms of environmental sustainability. Flintshire County Council’s Carbon Reduction 
Strategy requires a two grade improvement for refurbishment schemes. In addition to 
Building Regulation requirements, consideration in the design is also given to a further 10 
identified areas of environmental sustainability. 
 
The Flintshire Local Service Board have agreed to work to a target of reducing carbon 
emissions by 80% by 2050, equivalent to a 3% reduction year on year from 2011. 
Flintshire’s Carbon Reduction Strategy identifies a 60% carbon reduction target by 2021, 
equal to 5% reduction target year on year.  This target is broken down into 4 main areas: 
 
1. Good Housekeeping i.e. cutting out unnecessary waste; 
2. Energy Efficiency projects (the installation of more efficient plant and equipment); 
3. Asset Management e.g. shared use of sites, asset rationalisation, and exemplary design 
of new/refurbished projects; 
4. Renewables (the installation of renewable systems and generate electricity or heat) 
 
These projects are funded partly by the Energy Unit’s "spend to save" budget, and 
schemes are usually jointly funded with other finance sources. It is therefore critical for 
future schemes to ensure that sufficient funding is identified to adhere to the principles of 
the Carbon Reduction Strategy and Energy Policy.   
 
Reduction in Energy efficiency measures - the "risk of rising fuel costs" and significant 
price rises for electricity and gas is included in the Strategic Assessment of Risks. If the 
"spend to save" budget is reduced the impact will be twofold, less schemes being carried 
out, and energy bills increasing.  
 
Flintshire embraces fully the principles of BREEAM and seeks to promote high standards 
of practice in sustainability for all new schools. 
 
Our aim is to improve the efficiency of our schools before installing renewable energy 
systems, this is considered good practice and ensures that when renewable energy 
systems are installed they provide maximum benefit to both the school and the 
environment. 
 
We have over the past year for example, installed various energy efficient equipment at 
Connah's Quay High School, Mold Alun Campus and St Davids, Saltney ( such as voltage 
optimisation, lighting upgrades, variable speed drives on heating pumps, a Combined heat 
and Power engine before installing sizeable Photo voltaic systems on the above listed 
schools. Other schools are scheduled for this work 
 
The Directorate is reviewing its use of assets and buildings with a view to marking 
efficiencies wherever possible through reduction in leases, introduction of hot desking / 
mobile working. in order to reduce the authority’s use of energy, and consequently its 
carbon footprint. Staff are also being encouraged to car share and minimise journey 
through better use of mobile technology and video conferencing. 

 
 
 

Page 90



Page 51 of 67  
 

23. Sustainability 
 
Welsh Government (WG) announced in July 2011 in their programme for government that 
they were bringing forward a Sustainable Development Bill, legislating to embed 
sustainable development as a central organising principle across the public sector, and 
seeking to establish an independent sustainable development body in Wales. Flintshire, 
through a statutory duty will be held to account for their performance and will be required 
to report within their existing annual reporting on how higher level decisions comply with 
the duty. 
 

Sustainable development is the principle of improving quality of life by meeting the basic 
needs of people in our community.  Sustainable development means long term planning 
and in doing so, ensuring the decisions and actions undertaken in the short term will not 
compromise or add extra cost to our ability to deliver basic needs to our communities in 
the future.   
 
Our goal is embedding sustainable development as the central organising principle – 
which means that social issues (social justice that tackles poverty and ill health and 
supporting communities to be independent)  will be considered at the same time as 
economic issues (supporting/creating a competitive economy that minimises the demands 
for natural resources e.g. water, energy oil, and ensures children enjoy good  prospects ) 
at the same time as  environmental issues (enhancing pride in the community to support 
biodiversity and promote local employment that minimises waste generation, energy 
consumption and transport demands).  Considering social, economic and environmental 
issues at the same time results in a Sustainable Development output, and will not 
undermine the long term future of Flintshire. 
 
All new and refurbishment works must meet with the standards for efficiency and 
sustainability. New buildings are required to meet with BREEAM standards, which set out 
environmental and sustainability standards. 
 
A review of Transport provision will include the element of sustainability in terms of cost 
and environmental impact. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 91



Page 52 of 67  
 

24. Health and Safety 
 
In accordance with Flintshire County Council’s Health and Safety Policy and Strategic 
Health and Safety Improvement Plan, the Directorate of Lifelong Learning fully recognises 
the Council’s health and safety aims and objectives and accepts its duties and 
responsibilities for ensuring the health, safety and welfare of its employees and those who 
may be affected by the Directorate’s activities. 
 
The Directorate is committed to complying with all relevant health and safety legislation.  
Identification of service risks and the implementation of safe systems of work are 
fundamental to managing health and safety effectively.  The directorate is also committed 
to developing a health and safety conscious culture whereby management will lead by 
good example and employees are actively encouraged to contribute ideas for improving 
health and safety standards and conditions.   
 
All Services within Lifelong Learning will give due consideration to the following when 
reviewing and updating their Operational Service Plans. 
 
Health and Safety Management  
The Corporate Safety Management System (SMS) is intended to ensure a systematic and 
consistent approach to the effective management of health and safety throughout the 
Authority.  Managers will ensure that all Directorate employees are fully familiar with the 
Corporate SMS system, and that the system is implemented accordingly throughout all 
service areas. 
 
8 Key Priorities for all Lifelong Learning service areas for 2013 / 2014 are as follows:   
(individual service area health and safety priorities are to be detailed in service area action 
plans). 
 
1. Risk Assessment (Corporate Standard CS/01/01) 
- All service managers will ensure that they have drawn up a formalised risk inventory of 

the activities and tasks that present risk of harm(s), and keep it up to date. 
- Risk assessments are delegated to and undertaken by named competent person(s).   
- Risk assessments will result in suitable safe systems of work.  
- Employees will be instructed on risks and safe systems of work and documentation will 

be kept readily available for employee reference.   
- Risk assessments will be reviewed at specified frequencies or at least annually. 
- Safety performance and effectiveness of control measures / safe systems of work will 

be monitored at specified frequencies and in accordance with the Authority’s 
Monitoring Standard. 

 
2. Health and Safety Monitoring (Corporate Standard CS/602/01) 

All service managers will develop and maintain an inventory record of all relevant 
scheduled statutory and non-statutory inspections to be undertaken, by whom and at 
what specified frequencies.  Competent persons only will be designated to carry out 
contracted or in-house safety inspections of working areas, facilities, services and / or 
equipment. Managers will monitor to ensure that inspection frequencies are being 
complied with and the full requirements of the monitoring standard are suitably 
implemented. 
 
 
 

Page 92



Page 53 of 67  
 
3. Action Plans 

Each service area within the directorate will compile and keep up to date, a health and 
safety action plan to ensure that identified actions are addressed within acceptable 
timescales set. 
 
Service changes and/or improvements will consider health and safety implications at 
the planning stage and ensure that any relevant actions identified are added to the 
action plans. 
 
Service action plans will be under the ownership and accountability of Heads of Service 
and service area managers as appropriate. 
 
Monitoring of service action plans will be undertaken monthly by the relevant service 
manager. 
 
In addition, progress reports will be provided to the relevant Head of Service and will be 
provided to and monitored by Lifelong Learning Health and Safety Steering Group, the 
Directorate Management Team, and the Corporate Health and Safety Steering Group 
at specified frequencies. 

 
4. Communication on Health and Safety Matters 
- Managers will ensure the prompt reporting of and response to any health and safety 

concerns, accidents and incidents, suggestions for improvement brought to their 
attention. 

- Managers will ensure the implementation of scheduled health and safety meetings and 
sharing of health and safety information at specified frequencies 

- Managers will utilise the standard health and safety agenda criteria form at meetings to 
ensure consistency of information provided and received across all service areas as 
appropriate to each service. 

- Lifelong Learning Bulletins and Directorate information databases will continue to 
develop access to essential health and safety resources. 

 
5. Accident Reporting (Corporate Standard CS/600/01) 

All accidents, incidents, near misses, dangerous occurrences will be reported in a 
timely manner and in accordance with the Corporate Standard referred to. 
 
Accident investigation is undertaken in a timely manner to identify cause(s) with a view 
to preventing a recurrence. 
 
Risk assessments are to be reviewed as part of the manager accident investigation 
process and preventative strategies identified and put in place. 
 
Analysis of accident data is carried out monthly by managers, and at scheduled health 
and safety steering group meetings (Directorate and Corporate). 

 
6. Learning and Development 

Health and safety training needs analysis will be undertaken via the following 
processes as a minimum (refer to Corporate Health and Safety Training Matrix on the 
SMS) 

- upon appointment  
- induction 
- employee appraisals 

Page 93



Page 54 of 67  
 
- risk assessment process 

On-going general health and safety development will be offered to all employees via  
- induction 
- employee health and safety briefings 
- employee mentoring  
- identified training courses necessary for job competence 
  

Managers and supervisors will attend the IOSH Managing Safely Training for 
Managers. 

 
7. Procurement of goods and services 

In accordance with the Council’s strategic Health and Safety Improvement Plan, Health 
and Safety implications will be a prime consideration during the selection process. 

 
8. Management and Control of Construction and Contractor works on Lifelong 

Learning Premises 
All works must be suitably planned and managed according to the requirements stated 
in this document.  This includes detail of the Landlord Approval process that must be 
followed.  This document is available on the infonet and on 
http://moodle.flintshire.gov.uk/lea under health and safety.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 94



Page 55 of 67  
 

APPENDIX A 
 
Setting Outcomes – In-year priorities 2013/14 

Outcomes (in bold) 

Economy and 
Enterprise 

Business Sector 
Growth in 
Deeside 

Promotion and marketing of the Deeside Industrial Park 
and Enterprise Zone – leading to growth in the 
advanced manufacturing and energy sectors – leading 
to job creation and local GDP growth 

Economy and 
Enterprise 

Town and Rural 
Regeneration 

Implementation of town centre and rural area plans – 
leading to local commercial and business protection – 
helping make local communities viable 

Economy and 
Enterprise 

Social Enterprise 

Agreement of an investment plan for growing social 
enterprise – leading to new enterprise projects 
(including transfer of some direct Council services to 
alternative models) – developing sustainable service 
models for local benefit 

Skills and 
Learning 

Modernised and 
High Performing 
Education 

Implement the School Improvement Strategy – further 
modernising local services and provision – leading to 
improved standards and learner outcomes 

Skills and 
Learning 

Modernised and 
High Performing 
Education 

Implementation of primary and secondary 
modernisation plans – improving learning environments 
and making best and cost-effective use of building 
assets – to improve learner outcomes  

Skills and 
Learning 

Apprenticeships 
and Training 

To increase apprenticeship and training opportunities 
across sectors – to place and retain young people in 
work – to meet the skills and employment needs of 
local employers 

Living Well 

Integrated 
Community 
Social and 
Health Services 

To agree and implement locality plans with BCUHB – 
to provide more responsive community services – 
reducing pressures on acute health services and 
Council services - enabling more people to live 
independently and well at home 

Living Well 
Independent 
Living 

To implement our strategies for re-ablement – to 
enable more people across the age groups to live 
independently and well at home – improving quality 
of life 

Poverty 
Protecting the 
Vulnerable 

Poverty 
Access to 
Benefits and 
Advice 

To implement our Welfare Reform Strategy - directed  
at those at risk - to help protect people from the 
impacts of poverty 

Safe 
Communities 

Traffic and Road 
Management 

The prevention of illegal and disruptive on-street 
parking through Civil Parking Enforcement – and the 
introduction of lower speed limits in local high risk 
traffic areas - to improve road safety 

Safe 
Communities 

Community 
Safety 

To implement our Community Safety Strategy with our 
partners – to reduce the risks to communities including 
the risks of alcohol and domestic violence – helping to 
keep people safe 

Housing 
Modern, Efficient 
and Adapted 
Homes 

To implement our plans for a range of affordable and 
flexible supply of housing -  working with our social 
landlord and other partners – to improve quality of life 
for our residents 

Page 95



Page 56 of 67  
 

Housing 
WHQS for 
Council Housing 

Agreement of a business plan for achieving the WHQS 
by 2022 - to improve housing standards – to improve 
quality of life for our tenants 

Housing 
Extra Care 
Housing 

Completion of the second Extra Care Scheme (Llys 
Jasmine) and agreement of a creative model for self-
funded extra care schemes – leading to chosen models 
for Flint and Holywell – enabling more people to live 
independently in their own home for longer 

Environment 
Transport 
Infrastructure 
and Services 

Implement our local and regional plans for transport 
infrastructure and services – giving access to 
employment, homes, and leisure and social activity – to 
support convenient and affordable travel for access to 
employment, services and facilities  

Environment 
Carbon Control 
and Reduction 

Achievement of our own local plans and those with our 
partner agencies to reduce carbon and ‘future-proof’ 
our planning – leading to an improved environment 

Access to 
Council Services 

Completion of Flintshire Connects Phase 1,  the 
implementation of the new modernised website and the 
Flintshire mobile application “app” – improving 
customer service  

Matching 
Resources to 
Priorities 

Agreement of Council priorities for revenue and capital 
funding – with a matching resourcing plan – to achieve 
Council objectives for protecting and investing in 
local front-line public services 

Achieving 
Efficiency 
Targets 

Agreement of a fuller medium term efficiencies plan – 
with the achievement of value for money and 
cumulative annual efficiency targets – to protect and 
invest in local front-line public services  

Asset Strategy 

Agreement of an asset strategy to make best use of 
Council buildings by reducing building overhead costs 
and increased agile working – leading to future 
protection and investment in local public front-line 
services 

Procurement 
Strategy 

Full implementation of our procurement plans and 
systems – leading to major efficiencies through better 
procurement (whilst supporting local/regional supply 
chains of providers) – to protect and invest in local 
front-line public services 

Single Status 

Implementation of a fair, equitable, legal and affordable 
pay model – removing risk of future gender based 
inequality legal challenge & providing a base for further 
organisational change (see below) – to ensure that 
the Council has the capacity and capability to 
achieve its priorities 

Modern and 

Efficient 

Council 

Organisational 
Change 

Agreement of a future organisational design – which is 
affordable and saves on overhead costs for 
reinvestment in priorities – and ensuring that the 
Council has the capacity and capability to manage 
services well and to achieve our priorities.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 96



Page 57 of 67  
 
APPENDIX B: OTHER KEY PLANS AND STRATEGIES – 
 
• County Vision and emerging Single Integrated Plan (Flintshire’s Community 

Strategy 2009-2019) 
 
� Flintshire Improvement Plan 2013 – 14 

 
� Customer Services Strategy 
 
• National Implementation Plan: Improving Schools 
 
• Flintshire School Improvement Strategy 
 
• “Making a Positive Difference” (Children and Young People’s Plan)   
 
• LSCB Strategic Plan  
 
• Creating an Active Flintshire Partnership  
 
• Leisure Strategy 
 
• Strategy for Flintshire Libraries 2013-16 
 
• Arts & Culture Strategy 
 
• Play Strategy 

Page 97



Page 58 of 67  
 
APPENDIX C 

 
Council Planning Framework 

 
The Council Planning (Governance) Framework is a family of co-related documents which 
state ambition, priorities and targets within a governance framework of values, roles and 
responsibilities. It is comprised of three main parts which are produced as follows:  
 
• Council Plan (Governance) Framework 
• Annual statements: quarterly performance reports; full year summary performance 

report - October; 
• Service and Directorate plans:  – May 2013. 

 
The Council (Plan) Governance Framework 
This describes how the Council is run and governed and identifies organisational values, 
roles and responsibilities.  It ties together the changes to governance and business 
planning the Council has adopted.  These are now operational and include: 
 
The Council and Democracy 
• annual corporate governance self assessment 
• ongoing constitutional review 
• ongoing review of delegation 
• updating roles and responsibilities 
• development of accountability frameworks across the Council's structures 

 
Organisational Vision and Values 
• development of the County Vision and setting out county and local priorities through 

more robust frameworks  
 
Resources 
• the Medium Term Financial Strategy, People Strategy, Asset Management Plan and 

ICT Strategy as the four principal resources of the council 
• programme and project management methods 
• change management policy and practice 
 
Business Processes 
• service planning at Head of Service level and directorate planning arrangements 
• Outcome Agreement with Welsh Government (WG) 
• presentation and review of the Strategic Assessment of Risks and Challenges 
• categorisation and review of targets 
• consistent approach to target setting methodology and action planning 
• protocols for managing external regulation 
 
Partnerships 
• development of the County Vision and setting out county and local priorities through 

more robust frameworks 
• governance arrangements for collaborative projects 
• strategic partnership commitments and governance arrangements. 

 
            The Governance Plan will describe for each of the sections listed above plus the all 

Corporate services the specific process, commitments, roles, responsibilities and timings 
of the various elements of governance arrangements.  These documents will be prepared 

Page 98



Page 59 of 67  
 
and available as part of the overall Council Planning Framework around the start of the 
Council’s administrative year. 
 
Annual Statements 

 The annual statements are already in existence and are committed to throughout the 
reporting year.  These statements have both a historical (backward-looking) and predictive 
(forward-looking) context.  Some of these statements are required by statute, for example 
the Improvement Plan; others we have developed as good practice e.g. quarterly reporting 
on risk and challenges.   
 

 The predictive (forward-looking) documents will be available around the start of the 
financial year; including the budget, risks and challenges, and performance targets both in-
year and aspirational longer term improvement targets.  Other statements made 
throughout the year will be on quarterly assessment of risks and challenges and historical 
reporting of our previous year's performance as required as part of the Improvement Plan 
by 30 October. 
 
Service and Directorate Planning 

 The three service Directorates produce Directorate Plans which summarise the critical 
performance, risk and improvement activity for the Directorate as well as reflecting key 
aspects of delivery commitments for the strategic partnerships.  The corporate services 
are reflected in the Service plans for ICT and Customer Services, Finance, Human 
Resources and Legal and Democratic Services. 
 

 In addition all council service areas review and complete their service plans at Head of 
Service level.  These are annual plans but have longer term considerations to reflect the 
objectives of sustainable services, business continuity and longer term performance and 
improvement commitments.  Plans are reviewed and refreshed periodically throughout the 
year; at least quarterly to inform ongoing budget and resource planning.  
 
 

Page 99



Page 60 of 67  
 
APPENDIX D 
 

FLINTSHIRE FUTURES  
Quadrants and Portfolio of Projects  

August 2012 
 

CORPORATE CHANGE 
REGIONAL / SUB REGIONAL 

COLLABORATION 

Ongoing Projects  

  

CUSTOMER ACCESS � School Improvement 

� Contact Centre � Supporting People 

� Face to Face – Flintshire Connects � Social Services Commissioning 

� Channel Shift (incl. Methods of Payment) � Youth Justice 

� Standards � Safeguarding 

� Customer Engagement � Community Safety 

ASSETS � Waste 

� Property Rationalisation � Transport 

� Agile and Mobile Working � Capital Programme Management 

� Facilities Management � Legal 

� Property Portfolio Review � ICT 

PROCUREMENT � Procurement 

� e-Procurement � Emergency Planning / Local  

� Procurement Excellence              Resilience 

� Collaboration  

� Transport Transformation  

FINANCE  

� New ways of Funding Priorities  

� Improving Efficiency and Cost Effectiveness of 
Internal Processes 

 

� Stretching existing Finance Programmes (incl. 
Income Maximisation and Corporate Debt) 

 

� Developing a Value for Money approach  

WORKFORCE  

� Organisation Design and Development  

� Readiness for Change  

� Manager and Employee Self Service  

� Consultants and Interims – Procurement and 
Expenditure 

 

  

SERVICE CHANGE LOCAL COUNTY COLLABORATION 

  

Community Services � Carbon Reduction (LSB) 

� Transforming Social Services for Adults � Maximising Opportunities (LSB) 

Lifelong Learning � Training and Development 

� Education Funding Formula Review � Voluntary Sector alternative  

� Inclusion Service              provision 

Environment � Asset sharing 

� Public Car Parks/Civil Parking Enforcement  

� Fleet Services  

Corporate  

� Clwyd Theatr Cymru  

� Cross-organisational administration service  

  

 

Page 100



Page 61 of 67  
 
APPENDIX E: IMPROVEMENT TARGETS 
 

Ref. Short Description Direction 
of 

Positive 
Performa

nce 

Value 
2010/11 

(Summer 
2010) 

Value 
2011/12 

(Summer 
2011) 

Wales 
Average 
2011/12  

(Summer 
2011) 

Best in 
Wales  
Value 

2011/12  
(Summer 

2011) 

Target 
2012/13 

(Summer 
2012) 

Value 
2012/13  

(Summer 
2012) 

Target 
2013/14 
Summer 

2013 

PUPIL ATTAINMENT & OUTCOMES       

EDU/003 
 

Annually 

The percentage of learner achieving 
the Core Subject Indicator at Key 
Stage 2 
* Ranked 13th in Wales for 2011/12 

Higher 78.26% 80.80% 80.3% 85% 82% 81.3% 81.7% 

EDU/004 
 

Annually 

The percentage of learners 
achieving the Core Subject Indicator 
Key Stage 3 
* Ranked 4th in Wales for 2011/12 

Higher 69.27% 73.8% 68.1% 76.7% 74.5% 76% 77.2% 

EDULM1 
 

Annually 

Percentage of learners achieving 
the Core Subject Indicator at Key 
Stage 4 

Higher Not 
Applicable 

57.3% Not 
Applicable 

Not 
Applicable 

Not 
Applicable 

57.6% 62.3% 

EDULM2 
 

Annually 

Percentage of learners achieving 
the Level 1 Threshold 

Higher Not 
Applicable 

93.7% Not 
Applicable 

Not 
Applicable 

Not 
Applicable 

95.60% 96.7% 

EDU/017 
 

Annually 

The percentage of learners 
achieving Level 2 Threshold 
inclusive of Mathematics and 
English or Welsh 1st Language  
New NSI for 2013-14 

Higher New NSI for 2013/14   59% 59.6% 62.8% 

P
age 101



Page 62 of 67  
 

EDULM3 
 

Annually 

Improve perfomance of cohort of 
learners entitled to Free School 
Meals (FMS) to reduce the gap in 
performance of FSM and non FSM 
learners. 

Higher Not 
Applicable 

Level 1 = 
87.2% 

Level 2+ = 
33% 

CPS = 255.2 

Not 
Applicable 

Not 
Applicable 

Not 
Applicable 

Level 1 = 
89.5% 

Level 2+ = 26% 
CPS = 267.8 

 

Level 1 = 
93.8% 

Level 2+ = 48% 
CPS = 319.3 

EDULM4 
 

Annually 

Improve outcomes achieved by boys 
for CSI at each Key Stage (Level 2 
Threshold including English/Welsh 
and Mathematics at Key Stage 4) 

Higher Not 
Applicable 

KS4 = 57% 
KS3 = 68.1% 
KS2 = 76.2% 

Not 
Applicable 

Not 
Applicable 

Not 
Applicable 

KS4 = 55% 
KS3 = 73.7% 
KS2 = 77.6% 

KS4 = 61% 
KS3 = 75% 
KS2 = 78.1% 

EDULM5a 
 

Annually 

Improve outcomes in Mathematics Higher Not 
Applicable 

KS4 = 66.5% 
KS3 = 82% 
KS2 = 85.5% 

Not 
Applicable 

Not 
Applicable 

Not 
Applicable 

KS4 = 69.4% 
KS3 = 83.9% 
KS2 = 86.3% 

KS4 = 71.5% 
KS3 = 85.1% 
KS2 = 86% 

EDULM5b 
 

Annually 

Improve outcomes in English Higher Not 
Applicable 

KS4 = 70% 
KS3 = 82.5% 
KS2 = 83.8% 

Not 
Applicable 

Not 
Applicable 

Not 
Applicable 

KS4 = 69.2% 
KS3 = 83.1% 
KS2 = 83.8% 

KS4 = 75.1% 
KS3 = 84.7% 
KS2 = 85.4% 

EDULM5c 
 

Annually 

Improve outcomes in Welsh (first 
language) 

Higher Not 
Applicable 

KS4 = 73% 
KS3 = 78.7% 
KS2 = 77.9% 

Not 
Applicable 

Not 
Applicable 

Not 
Applicable 

KS4 = 61.8% 
KS3 = 67.9% 
KS2 = 78.9% 

KS4 = 73% 
KS3 = 80% 
KS2 = 86.5% 

P
age 102



Page 63 of 67  
 

EDU/011 
 

Annually 

The average point score for pupils 
aged 15 at the preceding 31st 
August, in schools maintained by 
the local authority 
* Ranked 15th in Wales for 2011/12 

Higher 385.07  
points 

413.53 
points 

424.35 
points 

484 
points 

459  
points 

509 Points 496 points 

EDULM6 
 

Annually 

Improvement of outcomes in 
Capped Points score, including 
increasing the proportion of A* and 
A grades 

Higher N/A 315.4 points N/A N/A Not 
Applicable 

336.8 points 339.5 points 

PUPIL ATTENDANCE & EXCLUSIONS       

EDULM8a The number of school days lost due 
to fixed-term exclusions during the 
academic year, in primary schools 

Lower Not 
Applicable 

94 school 
days 

Not 
Applicable 

Not 
Applicable 

Not 
Applicable 

99 school  
days 

94 school days 

EDULM8b The number of school days lost due 
to fixed-term exclusions during the 
academic year, in secondary 
schools 

Lower Not 
Applicable 

591 school 
days 

Not 
Applicable 

Not 
Applicable 

Not 
Applicable 

509 school 
days 

460 school 
days 

P
age 103



Page 64 of 67  
 

EDULM9 Reduce the frequency of fixed term 
exclusions of six days or more 

Lower Not 
Applicable 

KS4 = 36 
KS3 = 16 
KS2 = 9 
FP = 0 

Not 
Applicable 

Not 
Applicable 

Not 
Applicable 

KS4 = 25 
KS3 = 14 
KS2 = 9 
FP = 0 

KS4 = 23 
KS3 = 10 
KS2 = 6 
FP = 0 

EDUCATION OF LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN       

PUPIL ATTAINMENT & OUTCOMES       

EDU/002ii 
 

Annually 

Reduce the percentage of learners 
(in local authority care) leaving 
education without a recognised 
qualification. 
* Ranked Joint 1st in Wales for 

2011/12 

Lower 21.43 0% 3.5% 0% TBC TBC 0% 

SCC/035 
 

Annually 

The percentage of looked after 
children eligible for assessment at 
the end of Key Stage 2 achieving 
the Core Subject Indicator, as 
determined by Teacher Assessment 

Higher 0% 62.5% 53.68% 83% 25% TBC 35% 

P
age 104



Page 65 of 67  
 

SCC/036 
 

Annually 

The percentage of looked after 
children eligible for assessment at 
the end of Key Stage 3 achieving 
the core Subject Indicator, as 
determined by Teacher assessment 

Higher 25% 18.75% 30.8% 66.7% 40.0% TBC 60% 

SCC/037 
 

Annually 

The average external qualifications 
point score for 16 year old looked 
after children, in any local authority 
maintained learning setting 
* Ranked 21st in Wales for 2011/12 

Higher 77.67 
points 

103.46 
points 

193 
points 

314 
points 

186  
points 

TBC 186 points 

PUPIL ATTENDANCE & EXCLUSIONS     

       
EDULM11 

 
Annually 

Decrease the percentage of learners 
who are NEET (Yr 11) 

Lower Not 
Applicable 

2.7% Not 
Applicable 

2.70% Not 
Applicable 

2.30% 2.2% 

 
 

P
age 105



Page 66 of 67  
 
APPENDIX F 
 
RESOURCES 
 
Resources come in a number of different forms, but if appropriately deployed underpin all 
our service delivery and improvement work. They include physical assets/ buildings, 
people/ human resources, information and funding.  

 
ASSETS 
 
The Directorate is responsible for a large number of wide ranging assets throughout the 
County, such as 

• Leisure Centres  
• Open Spaces such as play areas      
• Libraries 

• Archives  

• Museums 

• Schools 

• Youth Clubs 

• Community Centres 
 
 
PEOPLE  
 
There are 1334 employees in the Directorate, full time equivalent of 661 covering 1982 
positions.  There is a gender split of 29.84% Males and 76.16% Female.  Nearly 38.58% of 
the Workforce are age 51 and above. 
  
INFORMATION 
 
The Directorate maintains a range of data sources and business information systems to 
support operational functions. It also is responsible for Records Management across the 
Council. Examples of the range of data include:  

• Library Service  
o stock: 265,146 
o total visitors 2011-12: 755,835 
o total website hits 2011-12: 66,912 

• County Record Office:  
o 340 cubic metres (12,143 cubic feet) 
o real, virtual visits and remote enquiries 2012/13: 12,300 

• Records Management: 905 cubic metres (32,321 cubic feet) 

• Museum artefacts: 6,000 

• North East Wales Schools Library Service stock: 300,000 items 

• Schools Information Management database: 26,000 pupils 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 106



Page 67 of 67  
 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME  
 

Lifelong Learning  
 
 

Estimate 
2013/2014 
£m 

Education - General 
 

 

Various School Buildings Repairs and Maintenance  
 
Various Disability Discrimination Act - Individual Pupils  
 
Various Furniture and Equipment 
 

2.044 
 

0.220 
 

0.048 
 

School Modernisation 
 

 

Shotton Taliesin Junior/Shotton Infant  
 
Various 21st Century Schools  
 

3.437 
 

1.308 

Primary Schools 
 

 

Various Learning Environments (Foundation Phase)  
 

0.060 

Flying Start 
 

0.900 

TOTAL - LIFELONG LEARNING 
 

8.0 

 
 

Page 107



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
 

REPORT TO: 
 

LIFELONG LEARNING OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
  

DATE: 
 

THURSDAY, 11TH JULY 2013 

REPORT BY: 
 

HOUSING AND LEARNING OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
FACILITATOR 
 

SUBJECT:  
 

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 

 
1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
1.01 To consider the Forward Work Programme of the Housing Overview & 

Scrutiny Committee. 
 

2.00 BACKGROUND 
 

2.01 Items feed into a Committee’s Forward Work Programme from a number 
of sources.  Members can suggest topics for review by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items 
can be referred by the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County 
Council or Directors.  Other possible items are identified from the Cabinet 
Work Programme and the Strategic Assessment of Risks & Challenges. 
 

2.02 In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful for a ‘test of 
significance’ to be applied.  This can be achieved by asking a range of 
questions as follows: 
 
1. Will the review contribute to the Council’s priorities and/or objectives? 
2. Are there issues of weak or poor performance? 
3. How, where and why were the issues identified? 
4. Do local communities think the issues are important and is there any 

evidence of this?  Is there evidence of public dissatisfaction? 
5. Is there new Government guidance or legislation? 
6. Have inspections been carried out? 
7. Is this area already the subject of an ongoing review? 
 

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS 
 

3.01 Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to 
determine the Forward Work Programme of the Committees of which they 
are Members.  By reviewing and prioritising the Forward Work 
Programme Members are able to ensure it is Member-led and includes 
the right issues.  A copy of the Forward Work Programme is attached at 
Appendix 1 for Members’ consideration which has been updated following 
the last meeting. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 109



4.00 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

4.01 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme 
attached as Appendix 1 and approve/amend as necessary. 
 

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

5.01 None as a result of this report. 
 

6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT 
 

6.01 None as a result of this report. 
 

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 

7.01 None as a result of this report. 
 

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT 
 

8.01 None as a result of this report. 
 

9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 

9.01 None as a result of this report. 
 

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED 
 

10.01 N/A 
 

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN 
 

11.01 Publication of this report constitutes consultation. 
 

12.00 APPENDICES 
 

12.01 Appendix 1 – Forward Work Programme 
 

 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

 None. 
 

 Contact Officer:       Ceri Owen  
Telephone:            01352 702305  
Email:                       ceri.owen@flintshire.gov.uk 
 

 
 
   

Page 110



LIFELONG LEARNING OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME                        Appendix 1 

 1 

CURRENT FWP 

Date of 
meeting 

Subject Purpose of Report Scrutiny Focus 
Responsible / 

Contact 
Officer 

Submission 

Deadline 

5 
September 
2013 
 

Quarterly Performance 
Monitoring 
 
 
School Music Service – 
Review of Business Model 

To consider Q1 performance 
outturns for improvement 
targets  
 
To receive an update on the 
School Music Service  
 

Performance 
Monitoring 
 
 
Monitoring Report 

Director of LLL 
 
 
 
Director of LLL 

28 August 
2013 

10 October 
2013 
 

To be determined    2 October 
2013 

14 
November 
2013 
 

To be determined    6 November 
2013 

19 
December 
2013 
 

Quarterly Performance 
Reporting 

To consider Q2 performance 
outturns for improvement 
targets  

Performance 
Monitoring 

Director of LLL 11 
December 
2013 

30 January 
2014 
 

To be determined    22 January 
2014 

6 March 
2014 

Quarterly Performance 
Reporting 

To consider Q3 performance 
outturns for improvement 
targets  

Performance 
Monitoring 

Director of LLL 26 February 
2014 

10 April 
2014 
 

To be determined    2 April 2014 

P
age 111



LIFELONG LEARNING OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME                        Appendix 1 

 2 

15 May 
2014 
 

To be determined     7 May 2014 

19 June 
2014 
 

Quarterly Performance 
Reporting 

To consider Q4/Year End 
performance outturns for 
improvement targets  

Performance 
Monitoring 

Director of LLL 11 June 
2014 

24 July 
2014 
 

To be determined    16 July 
2014 

 

 

REGULAR ITEMS 

Month Item Purpose of Report 
Responsible / 

Contact Officer 

February  Pupil Attainment  To provide Members with a summary of pupil attainment 
across primary and secondary school  

Director of 
Lifelong Learning 

February / 
March 

Incidents of arson, vandalism 
and burglaries in Flintshire 
schools 
 

Annual update report to review progress Director of 
Lifelong Learning 

March Children & Young People Plan Monitoring Report Director of 
Lifelong Learning 

March Educational Attainment of 
Looked After Children  

To receive the annual educational attainment report (joint 
meeting with Social & Health Care) 

Director of 
Lifelong Learning 

November 
2010 
onwards 

School Balances To provide the Committee with details of the closing 
balances held by Flintshire schools at the end of the 
financial year 
 

Director of 
Lifelong Learning 

P
age 112



LIFELONG LEARNING OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME                        Appendix 1 

 3 

Month Item Purpose of Report 
Responsible / 

Contact Officer 

November School Exclusions Annual monitoring report to ensure effective mechanisms 
remain in place for exclusions, together with appropriate 
levels of intervention and support 
 

Director of 
Lifelong Learning 

December Health & Safety in Schools To receive a summary report on accidents and incidents in 
schools during the academic year and the actions taken to 
support schools in achieving healthy and safe 
environments. 

Director of 
Lifelong Learning 

Quarterly Performance Monitoring To enable Members to fulfil their scrutiny role in relation to 
performance monitoring 

Director of 
Lifelong Learning 

 School Meal Service  To receive an update on the key project milestones of 
changes to the School Meal Service 

Director of 
Lifelong Learning 

 

ITEMS TO BE SCHEDULED  
 

• Directorate Plan 

• Disposal of Redundant Assets 

• Analysis of learner progress from entry assessment and successful strategies for securing improved learner progression 

• Update on Saltney Library 
 
 

 

P
age 113



P
age 114

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Lifelong Learning OSC mi 06.06.13 Ordinary
	Mi 11.06.13 JOINT LIFELONG LEARNING AND SOCIAL AND HEALTH CARE

	5 Sport and Leisure Business Plan 2013-2017 - A Local Authority Partnership Agreement with Sport Wales
	Enc. 1 for Sport and Leisure Business Plan 2013-2017 - A Local Authority Partnership Agreement with Sport Wales

	6 Directorate Plan
	Enc. 1 for Directorate Plan

	7 Forward Work Programme
	Enc. 1 for Forward Work Programme


